


DOCKETNO. 2.

Fo the Matter of .

IN THE MATTER OF THE
APPLICATION OF T-NETIX INTERNET
SERVICES, INC. FOR A CERTIFICATE
OF AUTHORITY TO PROVIDE
TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES IN
SOUTH DAKOTA

s et

| Public Utilities Commission ofr the State of South jﬁk’?{)’t:

MEMORANDA




Lance J.M. Steinhart
Attorney At Law
6455 East Johns Crossing
Suite 285
Duluth, Georgia 30097
Telephone: (7705
Facsimile: (776):

September 21, 2000

kota Public Utilities Commission

oy X SEP 7 9 4nmn
ast Capitol Avenue SEP 22 2000

\’fi‘fﬁ; SD 37501-5070 S0OUTH mA?(OT p : ;
7733201 Utime OMM!S%%@

Re:  T-NETIX Internet Services, Inc,

Dear My Bullard:

Enelosed please find one original and ten (10) copies of T-NETIX Internet Services, Incr-s»‘lf’
iplivation for Registration of a Telecommunications Company.

I have also enclosed a check in the amount of $250.00 payable to the "South Dakota Pi
Commission” for the filing fee, and an extra copy of this cover letter to be date stamiped
e 1o me in the enclosed self-addressed prepaid envelope. "

it you have any questions or if I may provide you with any additional information, please d
st besitate to contact me,

Respectfully ftted,

Attorney for T-NETIX Internet Services, Inc.




APPLICATION FOR REGISTRATION
OF T-NETIX INTERNET SERVICES, INC.
FILED WITH THE
SOUTH DAKOTA PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION

THE MATTER OF THE )
£ ATION OF )
T-NETIX INTERNET SERVICES, INC. )
)

AN QRDER ) Docket No.
HORIZING THE REGISTRATION )
PLICANT AS A )
COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY )

APPLICATION

Application is hereby made to the South Dakota Fublie

Jrilities Commission for an Order authorizing T-NETTIX
Zeyvices, Inc. ("Applicant”) to register as a

company within the State of South Dakota. The follewing

r

irnformation is furnished in support thereof:

1. Hame, Address and Telephone Number of Applicant
- T-NETIX Internet Services, Inc.

&7 Inverness Drive East

Englewood, Colorado 80112

Telephone: (303) 790-9111

Toll~Free Customer Service: (800) 531-424%
2. The name under which the Applicant will provide these
services if different than in 1. above:

T-NETIX Internef Services, IncC.



3. Applicant's corporate information:

Applicant was organized in the State of Colorado

12, 1999. A copy of the Applicant's Articles of Incor

attached hereto as Exhibit A. A copy of Applicant's e
of Authority to transact business as a foreign
State of South Dakota is attached hereto as Exhibif

The Applicant has no principal office in South Dad

name and address of the Applicant's registered ags

National Corporate Research, Ltd.
C/0 Marilyn Person

819 West Third

Pierre, South Dakota 57501

The names and address of each corporation, associa
partnership, cooperative, or individual holding a
ownership or management interest in the Applicant

the amount and character of the ownership or managomes!

. ot
i

are as follows:

Name and Address Shares Owned Percentige
Issued and

:? Nx‘w'\}-);, II’)C.

All of the above can be reached through the compan
in Section 1 above.
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respect to the provision of intragtate L

ervices in the State cof South Dako

4
30

attached hereto, the Audited Financial
ended December 31, 19%8 and Decemhesr 3%,

Financial Statements for the six months ende

T-NETIX, Inc., which demonstrates that &

financial ability to provide the servi

offer.

matters,
All inquiries regarding regulatsor:

addressed to:
Nancy K. Lee, Executive Vice
67 Inverness Drive East
Englewood, Colorade 80112
Telephone: (303} 790-91%
Facsimile: (303} ?96~9§,“
E-Mail: scott.spiek@t-ne

All inquiries regarding complaints

7w

Tim Russi, Vice President -~ 1L
67 Inverness Drive East
Englewood, Colorade 80112
Telephone: (303} 790-89111; (4a0y
Facsimile: (303) 7%0-9540
E-Mail: tim.russif@t~netig.o

The Applicant's customers wi

ré

"real-time" completed call detail

f’T

Ve
e

underlying carriers. Applicani

invoices and customer service will

Applicant.

b



Applicant is currently in the pro
required authorizations from the state
except Alaska. ZApplicant is currentliy

service in Iowa, Michigan, Montans, Texas

il

The Applicant is in good standing with
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certification in any state.
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11. Description of Marketing

plicant intends to market its services ho prims

fos

rezidential customers and to small to mid-~sized busirness

galaes personnel will have telecommunications service experi

Applicant will market through direct sales by emplovess asnd

agents,. Applicant does not intend to engage in multilevel

marketing at this time. Applicant's marketing materials are
currently being developed and are not available at thig time.
12. Cost Support:

Applicant intends to provide services at a price above itg

b
Fa
2
£

H
The)

o
43

Federal Tax Identification Number

84-1528424

14, The Number and Nature of Complaints filed against the
Applicant with any state or federal re ulato*_”ccmmiﬁgi@m
regarding the unauthorized switching of a customer's
telecommunications provider and the act t of charging customersy
services that have not been ordered:

None
15. TPariff

A copy of Applicant's proposed tariff is attached hersts

Foue SR

e
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WHEREFORE, the undersigned Applicant reguests ths
Dakota Public Utilities Commission enter an éfd%r’§£

application. <

DATED this 7| day of

Lance J.M. Sté&inhart, 1Its Counsel

o

if

6455 East Johns Crossing
Suite 285

Duluth, Georgia 30087
(770) 232-9200

7




State of Colerado

County of Arapahoe
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tek, being first duly sworn, deposes and sa
: ¥ice President - Technology of T-NETIX In
it in the proceeding entitled above, tha
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lication and knows the contents therecf:
ey knowledge, except as to matters which

io or belief, and to those matters he/she
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LIST OF EXHIBITS
ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION
CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY
MARKETING MATERIAL
FINANCIAL INFORMATION

PROPOSED TARIFF




EXHIBIT A - ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION .

10



TATE
- CERTIFICATE

COLORADO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT

ACCORDING TO THE RECORDS OF THTIS OFFICE

T-NETIX INTERNET SERVICES, INC.
(COLORADO CORPORATION)

FILE # 15991212839 was FILED
AND) HAS COMPLIED WITH THE
LAWS OF THE STATE OF cCor,
STANDING AND AUTHECRIZED
OR TO CONDUCT ITS AFFAIR

APPLICABLE PROVISIO

Dated: November 12, 1999

Dot )it ,

SECRETARY OF STATE

I, DONETTA DAVIDSON, SECRETARY OF STATE OF THE &1

IN THIS OFFICE‘QN'Nb?Ef”'“




ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION I
OF
T-NETIX INTERNET SERVICES, INC,

Cpe

ARTICLE] S
Name 19991213857 ¢

§ 6500
SECRETARY (F 51
1

The name of the Corporation is T-NETIX Internet Services, Inc , ~{3-4595 1

ARTICLEII
(apital Stock

2.1 Authorized Shares. The Corporation shall have authority to issus 10,600 shar
of a single class of common stock, without par vahe.

2.2 [Preemptive Rights. Shareholders shall not have the preemptive right to gequice
additional unissued or treasury shares of the Corporation or securities converiible into shares a¢
carrying stock purchase warrants or privileges.

2.3 Cumulative Voting. Cumulative voting shall not be used in the election of
directors or for any other purpose.

2.4 Transfer Restrictions. The Corporation shall have the right by approprigte actien
to impose restrictions upon the transfer of any shares of its common stock, or any it
from time to time issued, provided that such restrictions. or notice thereof, shall be set fosd
the face or back of the certificates representing such shares of commmon stock.

ARTICLE 11
Purpose and Powers

The purpose for which the Corporation is organized is to transact all lawful busines
which corporations may be incorporated pursuant to the Colorado Business Corporution Act;

The street address of the initial registered office of the Corporation is 1200 17th Stree
Suite 3000, Denver, Colorado 80202.

The name of the registered agent of the Corporation at such address is Russeil P, Dia
The written consent of the initial registered agent to the appointment as such is set forlh be »

The address of the Corporation's initial principal office is 67 Invemness Drive Hast,
Englewood, Colorado, 80112.




ARTICLE V

Board of Directors

The corporate powers shall be exercised by or under the authority of, and the
and affairs of the Corporation shall be managed under the direction of, a board of
number of directors shall be fixed by or in accordance with the Bylaws of the Corporation.

Businssg

The initial Board of Directors of the Corporation shall consist of one individual.
name and address appear below, who is to serve as director of the Corporation until
annual meeting of shareholders, or until his successor is elected and qualifies,

el

Mame Address
Advyn A, Schopp 67 Inverness Drive East, Englewood, Colorade 86113

The directors shall be elected at each annual meeting of the shareholders, provid
vacancies may be filled by election by the remaining directars, though less than a quory
the shareholders at a special meeting called for that purpose. Despite the expiration
term, a director continues to serve until his or her successor s elected and guaiifies,

ARTICLE Vi

Quorum For Shareholders' M eetines

Except as bylaws adopted by the shareholders may provide for & greater o
requirement, a majority of the outstanding shares shall constitute 5 QUOTHY ot &y ;
shareholders. Except as bylaws adopted by the shareholders may provide for a grestervot
requirement, and except as provided by the Colorado Business Corpuration Act w 5p
action on amendment to these Articles of Incorporation, on a plan of merger or ghare ex
on the disposition of substantially all of the property of the corporation, o the grs
consent to the disposition of property by an ertity controlled by the Corporation, sed an the
dissolution of the Corporation, action on 2 matter other than the election of directors iy Appry
if a quorum exists and if the votes cast favoring the action exceed the votes cact gpposing
action. Any bylaw adding, changing, or deleting a greater quorum or voting requirsmen: £
shareholders shall meet the same quorum requiremnent and be adopted by the same vete requ
to take action under the quorum and votin g requirements then in effest or proposed to be
adopted, whichever are greater.

ARTICLE VII

The Corporation shall indemnify, to the fullest extent pesmitted by applicable law i
effect from time to time, any person, and the estate and personal representative of sny such
person, against all liability and expense (including attorneys' fees) incurred by reason of the

HADOWPFNT12344) 68\Aniclcslnu:rncx.5crvz'ccs.bms.wpd -2-




that e is or was a director or officer of the Corporation or, while serving as a director or
of the Corporation, he is or was serving at the request of the Corporation as a director;
partuer, trustee, employes, fiduciary, or agent of, or in any similar manageriz| or fiduciury
position of, another domestic or forei gn corporation or other individual or entity orofan
smployee benefit plan. The Corporation shall also indemnify any person who is serving orha

served the Corporation as director, officer, employee, fiduciary, or agent, and that person's
and personal representative, to the extent and in the manner provided in any bylaw, resolutio
the shareholders or directors, contract, or otherwise, so long as such provision is legally
pérmissible, -

w

ARTICLE VIII
Limitation of Director Liabilitv

There shall be no personal hiability of a director to the Corporation or to its shar
for monstary damages for breach of fiduciary duty as a director, except that said personal
fiability shall not be eliminated to the Corporation or to the shareholders for monetary dar
arising due to any breach of the director's duty of loyalty to the Corporation or to the gh :
holders, acts or omissions not in good faith or which involve intentional misconduet or 4
nowing violation of law, acts specified in section 7-108-403 of the Colorado Business:
LOXPOration Act, or any transaction from which 2 director derived an improper personalb
Nonwithstanding any other provisions herein, personal liability of a director shall be eliminat
10 the greatest extent possible as is now, or in the future, provided for by law. e

ARTICLEIX
Incorporator

The name of the incorporator of the Corporation is Bryan M, Schwartz and. the adidre
the incorporator is 1200 1 7th Street, Suite 3000, Denver, Colorado 80202-3839,

IN WITNESS WHERECF, L, the undersigned (who, if a natural person is ever the ag

18 years), being the incorporator designated in Article IX of the foregoing Articles of _
Incorporation, have executed said Articles of Incorporation as of the ..LZE day of Navemﬁe;;;,

1059,
M. Schwartz,

Bighn

The undersigned consents to the appointment as the initial registered agent of T-NET

Internet Services, Inc. ' ‘\/7 P -

Russell P. bawn, Authorized Signatory

HADSWPFIT71234\) 68\ArticlesinternetServicesbms.wpd -

tad
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UFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Certificate of Authority

i, JOYCE HAZELT s Y Of State of the State of South Dak
fiereby certify that the Application for 4 Certificate of Authority of T
IHTERNET SER'VICES, INC, (CO) to transact busir
signed and verified purs i

Acts, have beeq received

ested in me by Taw, 1 hep

& duplicate of he dpplication
fo transact business in this state.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOR
have hereunte St my hand gng
affixed the Gregs Seal of the Staps of
South Dakota, at Plerre, the Capital,
this May 3, 2000,




EXHIBIT ¢ - MARKETING MATERTAL
Not Available

Jnt
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EXHIBIT D

FINANCIAL INFO



The Board of Difeétors and Shareholders
T-NETIX, Inc.:

We have andited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of T-NEFIX, fse
December 31, 1999 and 1998, and the related consolidated staternents
cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended Desamber |
financial statements are the résponsibility of the Company's management. O
opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on cur auditi

%

supporting the amounts and disc‘losurcs in thcz ﬁnmmﬁﬁ ﬁfﬁi‘, a
accounting principles used and significant estimates muade by aﬁﬁgem
financial statement presentation. We believe that our sudits srovide # ressonible basie e

In our opinion, the consolidated financisl statemients referred &
respects, the financial position of T-NETEX, Inc. andsul
results of their operanons and their cash flows for &g o thigepeas
December 31, 1999, in conformity with generally ﬂﬁtﬁﬁtnﬂ ammtmg: ;iﬁmﬁxﬁm

KPMG LEp

Denver, Colorado
March 21, 2000
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Accounts receivable, net {mote 2} ...oviieicrriscsnvasnnnerese
Prepaid Cxpcnscs J R e T L R R L LA A B A A it i
Inventories ..... et vaerneen S

Total CUITEnt 285618 . v cvvrssrrsrncrssnusssivisrresdsdoausueraeieind
Property and equipment, nei (nme 2}$ :
Goodwill, DBt .. ovvvievini v s s s s TR TR SRR
Deferred tax 28568 ... cvccvvesvonscsvorovssssssisesss ;e
: Intangible and other assets, fiet {HOIE 2 . cucrurcgsssssvssnsivmporossncssies

Total 110 & A [ 2 2 L E A LA R L

CLETHERE T

HOLDERS'

Liabilities:

Accounts payable ... ..oiiiiiiicisiriienenane
Accrued liabilities (note 2} ..coccervercassens
: cht (Dctﬁ 5)----s-sqvmtnsiu-w‘ehﬂﬁa»znx:ﬁa**aw;.‘#’»&'&w»ﬁ-T.w‘»‘;1;-7.'4'4;6&:ﬁ’-?%-:ci.”,w‘-"ééiﬂ":-:;“
: Total current Habilities . ...ocvvvrrvrorvsscrsonssbassenrasnss
Long term debt {note 5} ... ccviviericricrcnrorsrenrrroniipiioes
Tota} ﬁabiliﬁe‘.s O e T At A R L LA S A L L A

Stockholders' equity (uote 6): v
Preferred stock, $.01 stated value, 10.000,000 sharey mth Lresd, Fgran b
Common stock, $.01 stated value, 70.000,000 5 :
12,225,634 shares issued and outstanding at Decgmber 3

ET LRGRRERTRERE S GEEL S

SR URER DS B REY R RRTOAY

FeSPECHVELY « o v vurasri o im s ceRvaras .
Additional paid-in capital ... oo iiviivivisiaresusiersssesnesaas
Accummiated deficit. .. ocvcirioririintrir s rcEER RO LREES SR T O ER

Total SfOCkhﬁldﬁff Cﬁﬂii}’w»“urwvwww RS R R SRET RV REE ARG TR BN

Commitments and contingencics (note ¥}
Total ﬁabiﬁﬁcs md Siwkhﬁlﬁtﬁ' ﬁﬂ{xﬁfy e rw e rERE RERU TR REE R DO PEE LGNSR 5

See acczmpanﬁﬁ“ nutes o consolidered fuagnal

Lo g 2 e o e st oAt o e . 8 e re . et i A w24 4

o o Ao 5 W e n



T-NETIX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
.CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Revenue:
TelecommuniCations SEIVICES ..« v vt vrnmenrerarsrscasrsvrnrsvsas b g v 2 3
Direct call provisioning. ......oocovverenrumreirriiaaanses e 21517
Equipment sales and Other. ..., vvviiini i iiiiiarirnesnns oo Gl
Total TEVENUE . .o aveerr et rnrrarrannenass /
Expenses:
Operating costs and expenscs
Telccommunications SEIVICES . ..o vveveroruinnrancvesnassnny crnas I7674
Direct call Provisioning. . . vevevevreerracoiinicraiarrans ceres 15032
Cost of equipment sold and other..........coiiviavvrirarecnn . 3815
Total operating costs and €XPenses . .......ovveervvass ceeens 46331
Selling, general and adminiStrative .. ... covveniinniiieriiiesenes 13,794
Research and development ........cevviivirenrvivioiasarasanses 5%}?3
- Impairment of telecommunications BSSELS 4 v evuerneacn e rrovarerss 17%94
Depreciation and amortzation. ... vvev i ienvrireenarnnns vrimvEne
Total EXPENSES ¢ v verrrerarrsenrnsnssraoorsvususs fwv v s
Operating income (loss) -...........v00e frveiaen PN
Merger transaction EXPEnSes .......ocovsiirroiiiniaras Ciesirseses
Interest and other income (expense), net .. .. .cviuvicass Phseiveenrs
Earnings (loss) before income taxes..........cocnne vacsinsy
Income tax benefit (expense) (note 8) ...........vus RPN NP
Net earnings (1088) .« vvvvvvvnvneernrnmnrvanriieiiiisnas fiveriees
Basic earnings(loss) per commeon share........... s nararess frnn
Diluted earnings (loss) per common share .......... Cersssraevviney

Weighted average common shares — basic .....ooovvviviniesriravene

Weighted average common shares — diluted. .....oveicrieivciinnns

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

F-3
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T-NETIX, INC. AND SUBSIDISRIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF $TOCKHOLT

Balances at January 1, 1997 ................ .
Common stock issued upon exercise of
steck OpHOnS .. v v vt e

Common stock issued in business acquisition. ... ..
Common stock issued for cashi........ Cresianans
Dividends paid to preferred stockholders ........ .
Tax benefit from stock options exercised (note 8)
Neteamnings.........c.couv..n,
Balances at Becember 31, 1997....., errerkrens
Common stock issued npon exercise of

Stock OpHONS . . oot e
Conversion of preferred stock. .. ....ovivreiverne
Purchase of treasury stoek ........vvvrsnenennns
Stock compensaticn .......v.oiives. kssevesuss
Dividends paid to preferred stockholdtrs Crbesanes

Tax benefit from stock options exercised: {fiote 8)
Adjustiments to conform year ends of cornbined

COMPANIES &\ vt vt iteeiviinsnnsesrnrescarses
Neteamings ......covivvivininnn.n.
Bazlances at December 31, 1998, ... ..........c.n
Common stock issued upon-exercise of

stock options. ... .o.uvvveviinie P vk
Common stock issued for mtangiblc asget

(note 3) ..... et e es e Psrrsreerie
thloss ........................
Balances at December 31, 1999 ....... Cerkreesns

1269 3

P




T-NETIX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net earnings (1088) ...........ooviiiveiniinnnnn o 3010247 %

operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization................................ . 11,620 1174
Impairment loss and investment write-off .. ..... s e ereneens 4,632 600
Deferred income tax expense (benefit) ........................ (11173 5.
Loss (gain) on sale of property and equipment .............. - (266} {833 .~
Stock compensation expense . ............. e P - 75
Changes in operating assets and liabilities: .
Change in accounts receivable, net........... e rerareeae e (263)
Change in prepaid expenses..........:...... i {48}
Change in inventory (441}
Change in intangibles and other assets.................. cveens (593)
Change in accounts payable................................ . 972
Changcinaccrucdliabilitics......................,‘..u“”‘ __Leo7
Cash provided by operating activities . . .......... Ceeeseerins 13,216
Cash used in investing activities:
Capital expenditures . ............................. ceevieeeens {14,560)
Acquisition of business or business assets .............. eerruear (1,377
Proceeds from disposal or property and equipment. . ... eerrisvans 473
Other investing activities ....................... Crenas peeeeesa _ (980% (24605
Cash used in-investing activities ............ e o (164445 L5208y
Cash flows from financing activities:
Net proceeds (payments) under line of credit ...................
Fayments of debt ..u.o..oiiiii Cnrne

Common stock issued for cash under option plans ................
Common stock issued for cash ................oo v R
Treasury stock purchased............ e iara s
Dividends on preferred stock ...................... R,
Redemption on preferred stock ............. S e ceven -
Cash provided by (used in ) financing activities. , . .. ....... oo . 3668
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents . .............. {560)
Adjustment to conform year ends of combined companies ........... e
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of b4 .. 678
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year ............. cereneneries B LB
Cash paid for interest .. .., ,..... P, § 2568
Cash paid for income taxes Ceaa. e, P - - ¢ 1

See accompanying notes to consclidated financial statements:

F-5




T-NETIX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STA
December 31, 1999 snd 1998

(1) Sammary of Significant Accounting Policies

General
T-NETIX, Inc. and subsidiaries (“I-NETIX" or the “Company”) was incorpora
1986. The Company has three reportable segments the Corrections Division, the Iaterset
and the SpeakEZ Division (“SpeakEZ”).

The Corrections Division primarily manages its specialized telecommanicatio
systems for long distance ‘and local exchange carriers on a contractual basis.”
exchange carriers in turn pay a fee per call to the Company for euch billsble call ma
a contract with the Company, The Company also veceives reyenue frorn Hilling
correctional facilities in which the Company’s specialized telecommumnications hui
are located. The Internet Services Division provides interLATA Intersiet sepvices fo-Tnk
buys and resells Intemet bandwidth. SpeakEZ engages in the research and davelopn
marketing of speaker verification technology.

. Basis of Presentation

On June 14, 1999, the Company completed a merger with Guatewsy Technslog
privately held provider of inmate calling services. As aresult of the meeger, Gatew
subsidiary of the Company. Prior to the merger, the Compuny changed iy yesssen
December 31. Gateway's year-end was December 31. : ’

The merger was accounted for as a pooling of infercsts. Axa result, fhe Co
have been restated to combine Gateway's financial statements 2 i the metger had sesumg
of the earliest period presented. Information concerning common stock and per shire da
on an equivalent share basis.

" The consolidated statements of operations and cash fluwy foe the year
1997 have been recast to reflect the results of operationy and-cash Hows for T
July 31, 1998 and 1997, respectively, combined with Gateway for the yeurs ended Des
1997. '

~ As a result of T-NETIX and Gateway having different fdcal year ends pa
operations of T-NETIX for the five month period ended Decembrer Jl, 1998; s
reported results of operations. The net loss for the period and common stodk
have been accounted for as an adjustment of stockhiolders’ equity ab Junary 1
expenses, and net loss of $15,041,000, $17,606,000, and $2,235,000, respectiv
ended December 31, 1998. o ,

Liguidity h

The Company incurred losses from continuing operations in the current
working capital deficit of $8.2 million at December 31, 1999, The Compuny tecsh
relating to various covenant viclations on its bank credit facility. in <ounec
agreed to revise the existing covenant requirements if the Company can: i
on or before April 14, 2000. The funds raised are required to be used o redu
credit facility. These factors among others may indicate. that the Company |
obligations as they become due or the Company may have to significantly redute tnstaliaty
operations.
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T-NETIX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

* (1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

‘The Company, has taken steps to obtain the additional financing, on or before the deadline of Aprit 14,
2000, by entering into term sheets to issue convertible preferred securitics to a non-related party and
subordinated debt instruments to one of the Company’s directors. Management believes that they will
complete the above financing arrangements in the time frame imposed by tlie lenders. Should the Conpariy be
unable to complete the financing arrangements or an alternative financing arrangement by the deadline
currently imposed by the lenders, the Company would again be in breach of the loan agreement covenantsand
the lenders could commence immediate collection activity. ‘ :

In addition, the Company is taking steps to increase cash flow from operations and obtain additional
financing to ensure that the Company is able to carry out its fiscal 2000 business plan. There can be ne
assurance that the Company will be successful in increasing its cash flow from aperations or that additisnal
financing will be available, or if available, will be obtained on acceptable terms,

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries, Afl
significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Aecounting Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets snd
liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements dnd the
reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ fromx those
estimates.

Risks and Uncertainties

A majority of the Company’s revenue is generated from services provided to significant telecommunicax
tions customers. The loss of a major customer could affect operating results adversely.

Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents consist of highly liquid investments, such as certificates of tfcposit’ and money market
funds, with original maturities of 90 days or less. C

Fair Value of Financial Instruments .

The reported amounts of the Company’s financial instruments including cash and cash cquivalem;
receivables, accounts payable, and accrued liabilities approximate fair value dise te their short matirities, The
reporied smounts of debt approximate fair value due to market interest rates that these debts bear.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments which potentially expose the Company to concentrations. of credit risk congist
primasily of cash and cash equivalents and accounts receivable. The Company’s revenus is primanly
congentrated in the United States in the telecommunications industry. The Company had trade accoiinis
receivable from 5 customers that comprised 28% and 31% of total trade accounts recsivable at December

A
1999 and 1998, respectively. The Company does not require collateral an accounts receivable: balances and:
provides aliowances for potential credit losses. An allowance for doubtful accounts has been eatablished based
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T-NETTX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

" NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continted]
(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
on historical experience an

accounting period.

d management’s evaluation of outstanding accounts receivableat thaazxdaf fhe

Inventories ' A
is determined. using the

ower of cost or market, Cuast ,
obsolete inventories foutt

Inventories are stated at the
are made to reduce excess and

method. Provisions, when required,
realizable values.

Property and Equipment
Property and equipment is stated at cost, including costs necessary to place wc:hgmgc
repairs and maintendnce are Chargs &

in service. Major renewals and improvements are capitalizcd, while

operations as incurred.
Construction in progress represents the cost of material purchases atd -constu
interest capitalized during construction, for telecommunications hardware $ystem
completion. During the years ended December 31, 1999, 1998 and 1997, interest capitalize
Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis using. estimated ugeful lives. o
telecommunications equipment and 3 to 10 years for office equipment. No depreciat
construction in progress until the asset is placed in service. )

Intangible and Other Assets ‘

Other assets include intellectual property asscts, capitalized computer %0 Lware,
n costs, deposits and long-term prepayments. and other intangible mssets ;
1. Amortization is computed on the straighit-line basis ave 1
3 to 7 years for other intangibles. Amoniization charged to expe
mber 31, 1999, 1998 and 1947, reggective

applicatio
assets are stated at cos
pci’iods ranging from
$936,000, and $796,000 for the years ended Dece

Goodwill

Goodwill, representing the gible and idmilﬁ@bi awe

excess of the cost over the net tan

‘businésses, is stated at cost and is amortized, principally of a strajght-line basis; o
periods to be benefited 5 to 10 years. On an annuzl basig, the Company revikwi the rag
based primarily on an analysis of undiscounted cash flows from the acqul
amortization amounted to $1,103,000 and $364,000 at December 31, 1999 anid 1998, re!

I:ﬁpairment of Long-Lived Assels ,
ment and unamortized intzagitie asss

The Company reviews its property and equip :
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amoist may not be recoversh
and if the sum of the gxpect

the future cash flows expected to result from operations
cash fows is less than the carrying amount of the long-lived assel, the Comp
rtized cost of the long-lived asset 1 its estimated fai

by reducing the unaco

ded December 31, 1999, the Company recorded an fmpairm
nications assets of $4,632,000. Impaired telecommunications assets consisted of 4
construction in progress, and inmate calling platform assets, Two events ocumed il
carrying value of certuin equipment and intangible assels may not be recoverable.

s

During the year en
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T-NETIX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS —- (Contivmedy

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued}

-In September, 1999, the Company complctcd an cv‘ai‘uﬁtfén aff ﬁ'}'ﬁ- fufm ‘ﬁaﬁﬁs i ok |

the Gateway ComBridge Platform (“ComBndgn"), would bc {Bc pfat it
and upgrades of existing customers. However, over the last yeur the Cot
contracts where the DL Platform was to be deployed. Sitce the Compary & :
effective to maintain and support two separate systems, the Company proveeded fo s
contracts to install ComBridge instead of the DL Platform, During the quaster endes
Company successfully completed these negotiations. Due to the sbasdonment
Company no longer has any anticipated cash flow to support the canving
DL Platform. Capitalized costs mlatmg to the DL lefam} mr;!ueiﬁd sz;

December 31, 1999 were 1mpa1rcd by 32 093 000 znd ccnstmctwn ;rmgﬁ ;
impaired by §1,576,000. All of these charges are applicable to the mmmm&, i

In addition, the Company deployed a version of its old inrmste &aﬂl&ng ida
customer’s network locations. The Company has recently ;&xpﬂneﬂwfi & ¢ :
revenues for this platform. The customer has indicated to the Coms
platform as a source of future services. Addmouaﬁy,, smczz ’ﬁhe,

would be evaluated based on the new CumBndgc Piat&:«zm
estimated fair value of these assets to be less than the existing bos
value of these assets based on the discounted cash flows frows suck 4
minimal salvage value of these assets due to their specific use, the
approximately $963,000. This charge was applicable to the Corres

Revenue Recognition

Revenue and expenses from telecornmunications services and dizset call providening
the time the telephone call is completed. Provision is made for uncollestiil
provisioning revenue is recorded. Revente from equipment sales is recognize
to customers. Internet services are recognized as the services dre peovi
revenue for advance billings to customers, or prepaymants by customers peior ii;? the serighet:
or prior to the provision of contractual bandwidth usage.

The Company recognizes revenue from the sale of computes seftwase i in
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. (“AICPA”™}, Stutemient of Po
Recognition” (“SOP 97-2"), as amended by Statement of Positisgs Y, *
Provision of SOP 97-2" (*SOP 98-4").. .

SOP 97-2 and SOP 98-4 generally require revenue camed o seftwars. m iy
elements (ie. software products, upgrades/enhancements, past o g
training , etc.) to be allocated to each element based gn the relative
of an element must be recognized upon delivery of the products. 3

service elements (such as training and installation) generally is recogaised ag the
vendor does not have evidence of the fair value of all elements ina {Bﬁiﬁﬁﬁ&%
from the arrangement is deferred until such evidence sxists or untif 51t elements |
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T-NETIX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

" NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continged)

gnificant Accounting P:ol'mies. (continued)

(1) Summary of Si
atement of Position 98-9, “Modificatis

In December 1998, the AICPA issued St
Revenue Recognition, With Respect to Certain Transactions™ (“SCP 989"} SOPS
the “residual method” for recognition of revenue when vendot-specific ob
undelivered elements hut does not exist for delivered elements of a software arra
be required to comply with the provisions of SOP 98-9 for transactions entere inteb
The Company believes the adoption of SOP 98-9 will tiot have a material effect on 1t

statements, results of operations or financial condition.

* Research and Development
. Costs associated with the research and development

technology are charged to operations as incurre

accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 6, Accounting fo
Software 10 be Sold, Leased or Otherwise Marketed. Under the standard, cap!
development costs begins upon the establishment of technological feasibility, sulijec
considerations. Capitalized software costs are amortized over the econotmie useful e
which is generally estimated to be three years.
The American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“AICPA") Statent
« A ccounting for the Costs of Computer Software: Development or Obtained for Inte
provides guidance for the accounting for computer software developed:-or-obtained
the requirement to capitalize specified costs. There were no such costy capitalized pursuar

December 31, 1999 and 1998.

401 (k) Plan

The Company established 2 401(k) plan for all of its full time cmpmymcﬁ' ¢
June 1998, the Company implemented a matching program- The program call
25% of an employee’s contribution up to 6% of the individual employe vy totad sab
and plan expenses Were $111,000 for the year ended December 31, 1999 and wers

ended December 31, 1998.

Income Taxes

The Company utilizes the asset and liability method of accounting: for incord
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the: future tax conseq) :
between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing agsets and Hat
pases and operating loss and tax credit carryforwards. Deferred tax assetyan
enacted income tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the ¥
expected to be recovered or settléd, The effect on deferred tax assets and lia :
rates is recognized in the results of aperations in the period that includes the engetment

Earnings {Loss) FPer Common Share »
Barnings (loss) per common share arc presented in accordance with the pro
Financial Accounting Standards No. 128, Earnings Per Share (SFAS 128). Basiceus
dilution for common stock equivalents and is computed by dividing inconie of 10
shareholders by the weighted average qumber of common shares witstan
carnings per share reflect the potential dilution that conld occur if gecunties
common stock wer2 exercised or converted into comumon stock. For the year eudé
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. T-NETIX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — {Continged)

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

375,000 common stock equivalents were not included in the difuted edrningy per share cal
effect would be anti-dilutive, For the years ended December 31, 1958 and 1997 dilieted comm
equivalent shares outstanding includes 758,000 and 1,080,000, respectively of comimion sh
consisting of stock options, determined under the treasury stack method.

Stock Compensation

The Company accounts for empioyee stock options under the provisions APE O
“4ccounting for Stock Issued to Employees™ (“APB 15") and has adopted the “diselovure saly”
described in Statement of Financial Accounting Standards Ne. 123, “secounts o for ke 8
Compensation” (“SFAS 123”), which requires pro forma disclogurs of compensation &x;
value based method of accounting for stock-based compensation plans.

Comprehensive Income

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards 130, “Reporting Comprehensive Income
establishes standards for reporting and display of comprehensive invome and jts companeat
general-purpose financial statements. The objective of SFAS 130'1s to repast & (Rensend
equity of an enterprise that result from transactions- and other ccononiic cvents
transactions with stockholders (“comprehensive income™). Comprehensive incsme i§
income (loss) and all other non-owner changes in equity, For the vear caded Dedumt
1997, the Company’s comprehensive carnings (loss} was equal o net carninge (lossd.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncement

In Juné 1998, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issue
Standards No. 133, (SFAS 133), “Accounting for Derivative In:
statement establishes accounting and reporting standards for deriv
derivative instruments embedded in other contracts (collectively refeite
activities. The statement requires companies to recogaize all dervatives ;
instruments measured at fair value. The accounting for changes in faie vudus, |
intended use of the derivative and its resulting designation, In June, 1999, the Fusancn
Board issued SFAS 137, “Accounting for Derivative Instrurnents and ¥ |
Effective Date of FASB No. 133 — An amendment of FASH Statereat X
effective daté of SFAS 133 to all fiscal quarters of all fiscal yeary beginning 4f
does not expect the adoption of SFAS 133 to have a material impact o)
operations.

Reclassification

Certain amounts in the 1998 and 1997 financial statements have been rechiasified fo canform o
presentation.
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. T-NETTX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
" NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL S ATEMENTS — (Continued}

(2) Balance Sheet Components

Accounts receivable consist of the following:

Accounts receivable, net:

Trade accounts LECEIVADIE « o v vvernerranrn et $ 11,797
Direct call provisioning LECEIVABLE « v v 7,268
Customer reimbursable FECEIVABIE o v v e s e _ 1,161
Other TECEIVADIES <. v v vrreemesmsan s cerene 231
' 20,457
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts .......ccevere hesaeerneen (3,589).

Bad debt expense was $£4,981,000, $4,930,000, and $3,785,000 for the years ended Decem
1998 and 1997, respectively. o

Property and equipment consist of the following:

Property and equipment, net:

Telecommunications eQUIPIIENt . o« v ve e esre e i reeevcraruen cee

Construction in progress TSP PP L R

Office equipment . ....ooovveeenee USRS EE ,
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization . . <.« essesen

Intangible and other assets consist of the following:

Intangible and other assets, net:
Patent license Hghts. .. .eveeeemanrrenmresmrtest?
Purchased technology @ssets .....oeveveressrests
Capitalized software development COStS. .« uxenresrserssst s ort ittt
Acquired software technOlOBIES « oo vveremnresrmrersrsse s .
Patent defense and application COSES +vveevnsnsrnmsnesnmnnssrsesss
Depogits andlong—tcrmprepaymcntx......................‘....‘.u.
OURET « v ve s ensernesnnsenennn e s s er e r st e oo

Less: Accumulatcdamortization p




T-NETIX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

(2) Baiance Sheet Components — (continued)

Accrued liabilities consist of the following:

Accrued liabilities: )
Tieferred revenue and customer adVanges . .....oeeeeeerers wree

Compensation Tt L E R
OtHET v e e v veeenennsnm s snsn s ererees

----------------

(3) Mergers and Acquisitions

Gaieway

On June 14, 1999, the Company completed a merger with Gateway, by exchanging 3815234
common stock for all of the common stock of Gateway. Each sharé of Gatewsy wis exe
50375 shares of T-NETIX common stock. Outstanding Gateway stock: options were als
same exchange factor into options to purchase approximately 379,000 shares of T-NETIX ¢

In addition, in connection with the merger transaction, T-NETIX issued 375,341 shases-of cort
{o certain sharcholders of Gateway in exchange for terminating a royalty agreement. The 10!
related to antomated call processing technology and intellectual property rights that weie
by the royalty owners in exchange for royalty payments. The termination of the rayal
resulted in the acquisition of an intangible asset. The asset has peen recorded at fair valug,
fair value is based on the value of T-NETIX common stock. at February 10, 1999 (date- o
Agreement), or $6.625, times the number of shares issued in exchange for termination-of ik
interests. The intangible asset has been recorded in patent license rights and has ay estitnate
10 years, the remaining term of the underlying patent.

Selected financial data of T-NETIX and Gateway, prior to the merger were 83 fﬁfgamz Co

Three Manths Ended
T (amotnts In

Revenue: . o

TANETIX o vveenvrenssnemssmnrnruseermeentss § 8,669

GEEEWAY « o o evevvnssrnnres s s snssresrs 9115

CCOMBINEA « ceeeereeee rnnn e $ 17,784
Net earnings (loss): _

T-NETIX oovvenenneanes TR $ (L07T)

GRLEWAY « « o enereessnnnssusssnssnsesnss 245 {124y

COmBINE .+ ovrenermmrnnesesssmrs et $ 83y § 210

Transactions between T-NETIX and Gateway prior to the merger consisted:of revenue
licensing agreement. All such amouxts have been eliminated in the restated consolidated finandi

Thers were no material adjustments required to conform the accounting policies of the tw
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. T-NETIX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
'NOTES TG CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — {Continued)

(3) Mergers and Acquisitions — (continued)
Certain reclassifications were made to the Gateway financial statements to conform to T-METIX's
presentations. ‘

In connection with the merger, the Company incurred merger transaction expenses of $1OLTHL 00 for the
year ended December 31, 1999. Merger transaction expenses consisted primarily of fees for nivestment
bankers, attorneys, accountants, financial printing and other related: charges. S

Evans and Ricker Acquisition

Effective October 28, 1999, the Company completed the acquisition of substantially all of fhe assety af
Evans and Ricker (“E&R”"), of Portland, Oregon. E&R specialize in software used to controb-and manage
information for correctional facilities. E&R’s product, Lock and Track Corrections Informm Sgstern
(“Lock & Track™") is a comprehensive relational database designed te handle the operationa
reporting needs of municipal, state, federal, and/or private correctional facilities. The pureh
approximately $1.4 million including acquisition costs. The acquisition has been accounts
purchase method of accounting. The results of operations associated with the assets acquired
the Company’s financial statements beginning November 1, 1999, Assets acquired and lia
have been recorded at their fair values. The assets acquired were cash, accounts receivab
The estimated excess of cost over the estimated fair value of the net assets acquired
$1.3 million was allocated principally to goodwill, which will be amortized on a straight line b
The remaining net assets acquired were primarily current assets {cash and accounts receivable)
liabilities (accounts payable and accrued liabilities). The acquisition was funded by borrowt
Company's line of credit. Pro forma information giving effect to this acquisition has been: omiftéd
forma results do not vary materially from the Company's recorded results, as E&R's operations were not

significant in 1998 or 1997.

(4) SpeakEZ QOperations

1n December 1998, the Company began an evaluation of the SpeakEZ Division and deten
best course of action was to combine its research and developinent. operationg previous|
New Jersey with its corporate operations in Englewoad, Colora e coincl zd '
of the Company's former chief executive officer on December 9, 1998, This individual sge:
time in the SpeakEZ Division. For the five months ended December 31, 1998, the Company ch
of the severance agreement of approximately $240,000 to SpeakEZ selling, general and:adn inistrative

expense.

The Company completed the reorganization of SpeakEZ operations in February 199%:
tion also included a change in the marketing strategy from a direct customer sales strategy shnologs
licensing strategy. A direct customer sales strategy markets & specifically developed: soft ‘
specific, end user customer. The strategy is then to find other specific customers: who have:
systems and market this product to them. In contrast, a technology licensing strategy foeu!

customer who can integrate the SpeakEZ software product into its existing product line. Th
such as a computer manufacturer, is then responsible for the product integration and ultirmite
end user customer, <

The change in marketing approach noted above required the Company to evaloate futurs
all products in the SpeakEZ Division. As a result of this evaluation, management; ¢ stermingd {
capitalized cost for SpeakEZ products, some of which would no longer be rearketed, exceed
realizable value. For the five months ended December 31, 1998, the Company incurred @

for a reduction in the carrying value of such capitalized costs to their estimated net re
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T-NETIX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

- (4) SpeakEZ Operations (continued)

The Company also recognized a loss in the SpeakEZ Division on a note receivable made to-a-veniture
partner for $300,000. In December 1998, the venture partner notified the Company that its plan
capital prior to January 1999 were not progressing according to plan and s a result it would not be able t
meet its obligations as they became due. o

(3) Debt
Debt at December 31, 1999 and 1998 is summarized as follows:
' Decomber 31, _
(atnounts i thousands)
Debt: ‘ . S
Bank lines of credit .. ... .ot i $ 28,461 $ 169713
Advances on direct call processing...........oviriiiirinrinnns e 2,531
Notes payable to stockholders ...........0. i iiivinei — 4800
Notes payable tobanks ..........oooi i, e 625
4 460
Lesscurrent portion. ........oovvvenevvnnnnnn. e rranas 1,366
NoOn CUITENt POTHOM . .. i ie it e e s e ee e anenns .o $ 21,553

In September 1999, the Company entered into a Senior Secured Revolving Credit Facility (the
Facility") with its commercial bank. The Credit Facility pravides for maximum credit of $40,000,000
to limitations based on financial covenant calculations. The Credit Faetlity is comprised of A one yeu
component of §15,000,000 at an interest rate of LIBOR plus 2.75% at December 31, 1999: a thres
LIBOR component of $10,000,000 at an interest rate of LIBOR. plus 2.75% at December 31, 19
$3,461,000 at the Bank's prime rate, 8.5% at December 31, 1999. As of Decenibier 3L, 1999, the interss
on borrowings under the line of credit ranged from 8.50% to 8.87%. The Company aiso pays a fee of 0
annum on the unused portion of the line of credit.

The Credit Facility is collateralized by substantially all of the assets of the Company. Under the«
the Credit Facility, the Company is required to maintain certain financial ratios-and othér finagcial cor
These raties include a debt to a four quarter rolling eamings beforc interest, taxes and depreciat
amortization (EBITDA) ratio, a ratio of fixed charges (intetest and debt paymients) to EBIT
minimum quarterly EBITDA. The Agreement also prohibits the Company from incurring 4
indebtedness,

At December 31, 1999 the Company was in violation of certain covenants and the Company has.ree
& waiver from its lenders relating to various covenant violations. In connection with the waiver; th
agreed to revise the existing covenant requirements if the Company can raise $7 million of agiditional
on or before April 14, 2000. The funds raised are required to be used to reduce the outstanding balane
Crudit Facility, The terms of the bank dictate that $7 million of the Credit Facility is due April 14; 2¢
the remaining balance of the facility due April 30, 2001. The amount of credit under the Cred .
available to the Company is dependent upon our financial performance and may be less than $40° millis e
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‘ T-NETIX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
- NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continusc}

{(6) Stockholders’ Equity
Stock Option Plans

The Company has reserved 3,850,000 shares of common stock for employees and o=t
under various stock option plans (collectively the “Plans”): the 1991 Incentive Stosk Opti
ISO Plan”); the 1991 Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan (“the 1991 NSO Plan™}; ag
Stock Option Plan (“the 1993 ISO Plan”). The Plans provide for issuing both incentive
non-qualified stock options, which must be granted at not less than 160% of the fair marke
on the date of grant. All options to date have been granted at the fair market value of the st
by the Board of Directors. Options issued prior to 1994 had vesting terms of one to thiree ye:
grant. Substantially all of the Incentive Stock Options issued after 1993 vest over four ysary
grant. The options expire ten years from the date of grant. '

A summary of the Company’s stack option activity, and related information through Diece;
is as follows:

Shares Arilshle
—forGrant
Balance at January 1, 1997 .. ........ i, 476,163
Granted . ...t i e (111,508)
Exercised . ... ... ‘e -
Canceled ...... .ot i e, 96,875
Balance at December 31, 1997..........0.0cvvenunnn. 461,538
Granted . ... .. i veeran {246,619}
Exercised........ ... s
Canceled ... ..o e 166,000
‘Balance at December 31, 1998..............cuvvuve.. 380919
CGIANted L . (223300)
Exercised........ ... i s -
Canceled ...................... Feiv e raean 456,759 {4567
Balance at December 31, 1999..................... .. S13888 1919130

The range of exercise prices for common stock options outstanding and aptions exertisable at Decen-
ber 31, 1999 is as follows: ‘ v

Options Outstanding

Weighted - v
Averape Weighted

Remaining Arerage

Range of Numher of Contractual Exerelss

Exercigse Price . Shares Life Price
$ 0.20 ' 281,475 1.3 years § 0.20
$ 1.61 307,490 6.7. years § L6l
$.3.00-34.11 154,090 4.4 years 5 332
$ 4.12-$5.48 222,800 9.2 years $ 5.08
§ 5.49-87.24 455,525 6.2 yedrs $ 558
$ 725 394,750 6.1 years 5 Y.
$ 7.26-$10.99 53,000 1.9 years 3 3;07
$11.00-313.71 50,000 6.0 years $i344
£ 0.20-813.71 1,819,130 5.8 years £ 4.56
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T-NETIX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES!
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

" (6) Stockhoiders’ Equity (continued) \
The Company has not recorded compensation expense for stock options granted. The Com
computed the pro forma disclosures required under SFAS 123 for stock options granted using the
Scholes option-pricing model. The assumptions are as follows:

Year Euded Decombier 31,
1999 198
Risk free {nterest FALE . veveevererrnsueeeraamrannnnssaes 543% . 5.24% 5
Expected dividend yield ....... P e -— - *
Expected lives (in years) ....... e eenieee i 52 years 5.0 years* 49ye 1
Expected VOIAtILY . . oo v vneeenre vt - 70:0% 70.0% 100%
Weighted average remaining contractual life of options , . \ ce T
OUtStANAINE o oo vne e neaeaegeeean 58 years 49 years SZyems oo
Weighted average fair value at grant date ................. $3.24 §2.35 S4.08

The pro forma effects of épplying SFAS 123 are as follows for the years ended December 31, 10991
and 1997: ;

_ Year Ended Decembad 3%
(aniount in thoasanda)
Net earnings (loss): ' -
AS TEPOTIE « v eevnsevtereeeeenvnnrenas et .. (16247 § 210 81
PrO fOTTIIA + + o v e e eeersnsnenanennsassaonascaensasosurs o (L8 (847 §20
Net earnings (loss) per common share: so
As reported: ‘ ‘
BaSIC . o v v v eer e eaneeaaaann i et cereiee . § (082 f002 0§
1T I R L (0.82y 002
Pro forma: ) B
BaSIC . . e vvvs evnneraccssesannnsanssrsacnssns veaee .o 8 (0.89) $0.07) 80
i DR (0.89) (0071 B

The Black-Scholes option-pricing model was developed for use in estimating the faie valte:
options that have no vesting restrictions and are fully transferable. In addition, optien-pricing mod
the input of highly subjective assumptions, including expected stock price volatility, Because the
employee stock options have characteristics significantly different from those of traded op
changes in subjective input assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate, in n
opinion, the existing models to not necessarily provide a reliable single measure of the Fudr valu
employee stock options. S

In July, 1997, the Board of Directors amended the 1993 ISO Plan and the 1991 NSO Plao te
the Compensation Committee may amend certain outstanding options with an exercise prica in-£x
current market price in order to modify the exercise price to the current market price
Angust 11, 1997, the Compensation Committes re-priced the exercise price to $7.25 per sha
outstanding options under the 1993 ISO Plan and the 1391 NSO Plan having an exerelst

greater than $7.50 prier to such re-pricing. This re-pricing affected 773,500 options gtammiund: i
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T-NETIX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

(7) Segment Information

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 131, Disclosures About Segmien 56 nid
Related Information, (“SFAS 131"") establishes standards for the way public enterprises piiiation

about operating segments in annual financial statements. SFAS 131 als6 establishies stan closres
about products and services, geographic areas and major custotrers. -

The Company has three reportable segments; the Corrections Divisions, the:
Internet Services Division. The Company evaluates performance based on garn
taxes. Additional measures include operating income, depreciation and amortizatio
There are no intersegment sales. The Company’s reportable segmients are specific. bisis
different products and services, They are managed separately because each bugd
technology and marketing strategies. The accounting policiés of the reportable segme

Revenue from external customers:

Corrections Division ... ...vveirinrerenrrerrecnrens .o § L5896 § 67
SpeakEZ Division .. .ovvveriireniininnnns . . 93
Internet Services DIVISIon ......coovriviirarssee feiaes 1,546

Operating income (loss):

Corrections DIVISIOn ... ...oveiuvirvninnavereanasnane 5 (5796 § 68
SpeakEZ Division......c.coeiviiiiiineriineercs - (Z518) (]
Internet Services Division .......ocviirivnavens Ha

Depreciation and amortization
Corrections Division . .....cvoviuineiiirnns S, $ 10,851
SpeakBEZ Division . ...o.veieininiinriiiinenn creereis 969
Internet Services Division ............ irecevesnan cibex s

Interest and other income (expense)

" Corrections Division . ......vvviiiiiinirnnacncnveccne § (LD
SpeakBZ Division . ... ..vvvneeiininnanianns Ceerrrbis (920}
Internet Services Division ... .. R

Segment earnings (loss) before tax:

Corrections Division . ......c.ovviininn.n eeereaes . 5 o0
SpeakEZ Division ... .vvvivniviiiiivnnatcacrcansessn {3,439
Internet Services Division ....c.uiiviiiisiininarns 04

Segment earnings (loss) before tax: :

Revenue from external customers...... e ek § 73235
Operating income (loss) ..... P R e (8210)
Depreciation and amortization. .. .. U DIURPRI § 55711
Interest and other (income) expense, net-..... O 5. ¢
Segment earnings (loss) before tax . .....ociiienivee (113645
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T-NETIX, ING. AND SUBSIDIARIES
OLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continuedy
"~ (7) Segment Information — (continued)

NOTES TO CONS

Segment assets:
Corrections Division, R Ve
SpeakEZ Division

..................

Internet Services Division

Substantially all of the Com

Revenue as a percentage of to
December 3], 1999, 1998 and 19

pany’s reportable Scgment revente s derived within the Uy

tal revenue attributable to significant customers for the vagss
97 is as follows:

AT&T ............ R 7 1 6%
Bc‘ll e .o eveessae  HE iz
SBC Communications ;

..........................

There was no interse
amounts to arrive at net e
$1,039,000 for the years
included eliminations of
Tespectively, Eliminations
payables in the SpeakEZ

(8) Income Taxes
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_ T-NETIX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
" 'NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

(8) Income Taxes (continued)

Income taxes differ from the expected statutory income tax benefit, by applying the US federal income
tax rate of 34% to pretax earnings for the years ended December 31, 1999, 1998 and 1997 dueto the following:

1999 1993 L1997
Expected statutory income tax (benefit) expense ............. $ (3,864) § 273 $ 947
Amounts not deductible for income tax .......... ..o ienne 699 107 97
State taxes, net of federal benefit..........ccvvuivneainnnans 317) 43 . 55
Change in valuation allowance............ooviiiniininneen 2,263 (113) - " —
03 T 162 (114) C a0y
Total income tax expense (benefit) ......,........ AU $ (1,117) S 196 S 1 039

(ainounts in thusands)

Tieferred income tax assets:

Net operating 10ss carryforwards .......ooevenneerrenannnn. P '$ 6,556 8 5406
~ Allowance for doubtful acCounts ......cvt v iirercrreneeirrenaanns 1,488 o T14
COther e e O PP R 680 458

Total gross deferred income tax @ssets .....ccoveiiirinrnrerecnssnnes 8,724 6,580

Less valuation allowance . ... ....iviviiviraviannineseeneraranes aees (332 (1,884)

4,997 5116

Deferred income tax liabilities: '
.Intangible assets, due to difference in book/tax basis ..........vivinann. (474) - - (1,068)

“Property and equipment, principally due to differences in depreciation..... (1, 867) -(2,523)
Other assets, due to differences in book/tax basis .......oovvvviviieiinn St

(563)
Total gross deferred tax Habilitiles .......cvveeiiveieeerieriieininnnn, "

At Dcccmber 31, 1999, the Company had net operating loss carryfoxwarda for tax purpoacszfaggrcgatmg
approximately $17.4 million which, if not utilized to reduce taxable income in future periods; expire at variou:
dates through the year 2010. Approximately $1.3 million of the net operating loss carryforwards are-subject te
certain rules limiting their annual usage. The Company believes these annual Himitations willnot ultimatel;
affect the Company’s ablhty to use substantially all of its net operating loss carrvfcrwa:ds or incomis ta
purposes.

e entire ne
5 with -
§ projecte:

A valuation allowance is provided when it is mors likely than not that some portion
deferred tax asset will not be realized. The Company has offset a portion of its deferred:
valuation allowance. The valuation allowance will be adjusted in the future based on the Compm
taxable income. ’

The exercise of stock options, which have been granted under the Company's 1991 ’NS@-ﬁfsi‘Qck optio
plan gives rise to compensation which is included in the taxable income of the applicable option holder and'i
deductible by the Company for federal and state income tax purposes. The income tax benéfit associzted wit
the exercise of the NSO options is recorded as an adjustment to additional paid-in capital when realized.
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T-NETIX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES )
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continuédy -

. {9) Commitments and contingencies

. The Company leases office space under operating lease agreements. Rent expense
- agreements for the years ended December 31, 1999, 1998 and 1997 was approximately:$
* and $629,000, respectively. Future minimum lease payments under these lease agreements for
- five years are summanzed as follows (amounts in thousands):

Year ending December 31: .
o T

na_turc, as would not have a material aﬁ'cct on the Company s ﬁnancx‘_ :
flows of the Company if resolved unfavorably.
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T-NETIX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(Unaudited)

ASSETS -
Cush and cash equivalents..................oo0ees . e, .
Acocounts receivable, net ... e
Propaid eXPENSES .o a i i s e
017 (- P vars

Total current assets
Property and equipment, net
Goodwill, Met . .. oo i e e e
5108 (00 (T B 3. R OO
Intangible and other assets, net

Total assets

.............................................

..............................................

............................................

...................................................

LIABILITIES, REDEEMABLE CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK
AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Lisbilities:
Accounts payable
Accrned Habillties ... .. e e s
Current portion of fong term debt

Total current liabilities
Long-term debt .. ... e i it

Total Habilities ... ... .o i e it e
Series A redeemable convertible preferred stock, $1,000 per share, stated value,
3,750 shares authorized; issued and outstanding at June 30, 2000; liquidation Co
preference of $3,811,000 at June 30,2000 ..........onviviirines feirasaas 1,842 S
Stockholders' equity: '
Common stock, $,0! stated value, 70,000,000 shares authorized; 12,733,084 and
12,699,400 shares issued and outstanding at June 30, 2000 and December 31,

.....................................................

..........................................

1999, respectiVely .. ...t i i et 127
Additional paid-in capital ...... ... ... .o eeev. 5660 35T
Accumulated deficit. ... .o . i s (16166);

Total stockholders’ equity . ... 2L 527

Commitments and contingencies
Total liabilities, redeemable convertible preferred Lo
stock and stockholders’ equity .. ......vih i e $ 74,630

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated finaricial statements.



T.NETIX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

LG’%’?‘}?{:’.‘N’SI&D CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(Unaudited)

Three Months Ended  Six Months Ended:= -
June 30, June W0
2000 1999 2000

(Amounts in Thousands, Except
Per Share Amounts)

sications Services . ... - e $11,953 $10,065 $22,077 $19,8.

* 7247 7021 14492 13
6,743 — 12,561
826 660 1,208

26,769 17,746 50,338

5360 4263 9,861 8,506 -
6,751 6,468 13,268 12',54_‘855‘

5,550 — 10,648 e
332 214 549 879
: gsmmmg COStS . v i i iiieie.. 17993 10945 34,326

seneral A0 AQMIDISUEALYE ..o eeeee e L. 4583 3259 8321
; 1560 1253 2,744
3117 2848 6166

Tistal exg 21,262 18,305 51,557 3
EIPEEAtNG 1058 . oo v v e e e e (493)  (559) (1,219) (1,30

H 200N ERPENSES v e — (827) —
BT SXPANSE, TIBL. . (vt (673) (633 _(1,027)
Loy before INEOme tXES . .o cv vt (1,166) (2,019) (2,246)
3% benefit (EXPONSE) v v v e r b (103) 810 (103)
e A S R AR R R (1,269) (1,209) (2,349)
- discount on redeemable convertible preferred stock . (430) — (430)

Het logs applicable to common SEOCK .. .vvviiiieen $(1,699) $(1,209) $(2.779) $¢ n,

s dilured loss per common share . .. ...o.oovuieen R $ (0.13) $ (0.10) § (0:22) $

{ ip computing basic and diluted net loss per i
HE i I R R R 12,701 12,372 12,756 12

See¢ accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.




T-NETIX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

. CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Unaudited)

Cash fows from operating activities:

Nat](}ss ............................... 1;5(2;341)

Depreciation and amortzation...... .. e
e e income tax benefit ..., A
Guin on sale of property and equipment ...
Acerstion of discount on subordinated note payable ...................... ...
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable, net
Prepaid expenses ...
Inventories ..., .. . .

5670

...............................................
---'.....,...--.'-...-.....'.'..---.-~-‘ .......
................................................

.............................................

Accounts payable ... ..
Aeamed liablides ...

Cash provided Y Operating activities ... ..
Cash used in investing activities: ~
Purchase of property and equipment........,. . .. . ... R T

Prageeds from disposal of property and equipment..............,. .. "
Other investing activities

.............................................

....................................................

Cash vsed in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities; :
Net proceeds from (payments on) line of eredit ..
Proceeds from debt ,
Payments of debt ...,
Proceeds from issuance of redeemable convertible preferred stock, net...... . .. .. -
Comumon stock issued for cash under option plans . ... ... ]
Cash provided by Anancing activities ............. ... .. EE TN

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents ... . 7
Cash and cash equivalents ar beginning of period ............. ... . e

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

.......................................

.....

......................................

Cash paid for interest

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements,
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T-NETIX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TQ CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
’ (Unaudited)

€1} Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Elnaudited Financial Statements

The accompuanying unandited consolidated financial statements reflect all adjustments which, ir the opinior
ot negement, are necessary to reflect a fair presentation of the financial position and results of operations”
TNETIX, Inc. and subsidiaries (the Company) for the interim periods presented. All adjustments, in the- opini
af management, are of a normal and recurring nature. Some adjustments involve estimates, which mayreg
siswision in subsequent interim periods or at year-end. The financial statements have been presented in accor
with genermlly accepted accounting principles. Refer to notes to consolidated financial statements, which appe
in the 1999 Annual Report on Form 10-K for the Company’s accounting policies, which are pertinent to these:
Wsienents. ' -

P4

Hasty of Presentation

On June 14, 1999, the Company completed a merger with Gateway Technologies, Inc. (“Gateway"}
privately held provider of inmate calling services. As a result of the merger, Gateway became a wholly owri
wibisidiney of the Company. Prior to the merger, the Company changed its year-end from July 31 to December3
Chaeway’s year-end was December 31.

The merger was accounted for as a pooling of interests. As a result, the Company’s financial statérents’
tseen restated to combine Gateway’s financial statements as if the merger had occurred at the beginning of-the
earfiest period presented. Information conceming common stock and per share data has been restated on an
gouivalent share basis, -

Ligusdity

The Company incurred losses from continuing operations in the three and six months ended June 30;
of %1.3 million and $2.3 million, respectively and had a working capital deficit of $30.8 milliont atJune30;
fn July 2000, the Company and its lenders amended the Company's credit agreement to revise certain: fin
cavenants and extended the maturity date until April 30, 2001, and as a result the debt with the bank: hi
clussified as a current liability. The Company raised $7.5 million of additional financing in April 2000,
financing consisted of preferred stock and subordinated debt. The net proceeds of approximately$7.2 mill
were used to reduce the outstanding balance on the credit facility. :

The Company is taking steps to increase cash flow from operations, including renegotiating contract:p:
and cost control measures, in order to carry out the remainder of its fiscal 2000 business plan. However, !
ti no assurance that the Company will be successful in increasing its cash flow from operations and the:Cot
iy require additional financing to fund operations. In the event additional financing is required, the Clom
may not be able to obtain financing on terms acceptable to the Company and it may have to curtain opera 1

Eurnings (Loss) Per Common Share

Bamings (loss) per common share is presented in accordance with the provisions of Statement of Fin
Aceounting Standards No. 128, Earnings Per Share (SFAS 128). Basic earnings per share excludes the im
potentially dilutive securities and is computed by dividing income or loss available to common shareheld
the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the peried. Diluted eamings per share're
the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts to issue common stock Were €xXercise
eonveried into common stock. There is no difference between basic and diluted net loss per-share-s
solentally dilutive securities from the conversion of redeemable convertible preferred stock aud the exer
aptions and warrants are anti-dilutive for all periods presented. The calculations of diluted vet loss per com
share for the three and six months ended June 30, 2000 and 1999, do ot include 991,000 and TA8W
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T-NETIX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
- NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — {Continiie

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — (Continued)

385,000 and 424,000, respectively, of potentially dilutive sectrities, including common sias
warrants and redeemable convertible preferred stock.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In March 2000, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB™) is:;;u&d?-
“Accounting for Certain Transactj i '

No. 25 (“FIN 44"). This interpretation , d
and subsequent amendments to stock option transactions. FIN 44 is effective Tuly 1, 2000 it

cover specific events that occur after either Decembcf 15, 1998 or Jlanuary 2, 2000, 1
expect that the application of FIN 44 will have a material effect on its finsnicial position or resul

In December 1999, the SEC released Staff Accounting Bulletin (“SAB™) Nu, 101, R
Financial Statements”, which provides guidance on the recognition, presentition, and di
financial statements filed with the SEC. Subsequently, the SEC teleased SAB ¥
implementation date of SAB 101 for the Company until the quarter ended Decarbe

does not expect the application of SAB 101 to have a misterial impact on ity Rrane
operations.

In June 1998, the Financial Accounting Standards- Board: issued - Statement of
Standards No. 133, (SFAS 133), “Accounting for Derivative Instruments: arid He it
by SFAS No. 137, SFAS 137 defers the effective date of SFAS 133 1o sl fisesl quars
beginning after June 15, 2000, SFAS 133 establishes accounting and reportis
instruments, including certain derivative instruments embedded in. other cofiteaets
derivatives), and for hedging activities. SFAS 133 requires comipanies to recagnize alfde
b nstruments measured at fair value. The accounting. for changes
ntended use of the derivative and its resulting designation, The ¢
133 to have a material impact on its financial position or results of ope

losses, depends on the i
the adoption of SFAS

Reclassification .

Certain amounts in the 1999 financial statements have been reclassified to conform o the 2000
(2) Balance Sheet Components

Accounts receivable consist of the following:

Accounts receivable, net:
Trade accounts receivable................... ... ...
Direct cal] provisioning receivable
Customer reimbursable recejvable
Other receivables

----------------------




T-NETIX, INC, AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

{2} Balance Sheet Components — (Continued)

__ Bad debt expense was $1.5 million and $1.6 million for the three months ended June 30, 2000 and: 1999,
respectively, and $2.8 million and $2.9 million for the six months ended June 30, 2000 and 1999, respectiv ely:

Property and equipment consists of the following:

June 30,  December 31,
: 1999

(Amounts it Thoutsnds)
Property and equipment, net:
Telecommunications equipment ......................coieeennis. $ 60,160  $ 55487
Construction In PrOZTESS . .. v vvvvr ittt e e e e, 8,128 T34t
Office equipment . ............ i e 10,696 9,169
‘ 78,985 L9
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization ............ (41,530 38,139y

$3745¢ $33858

Intangible and other assets consist of the following:

Intangible and other assets, net:

Patent license rights ......... ... .o i e
Capitalized software development costs .......... et irey e
Acquired software technologies ... ........... ... o 0 i, .
Patent defense and application COStS .. .. ... .. .....outiiirei s

Deposits and long-term prepayments................c0¢'veeronin. P
Other ......,

Accrued liabilities consist of the following:

Accrued liabilities:
Deferred revenue and customer advances
Compensation related . . ... ... . e
T




T-NETIX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
- NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEME!

TS — (Continued)

(3) Debt

Debt consists of the following:

Debt:
Bank lines of credit ., ..

Subordinated note payable
Other

....-..----..-.............‘....---.r-ywv-uf“‘»s,.;s‘.

..---...........4--‘~~,r-u:ut»-w-u.;-srs-a.uac

Bank Line of Credir

In September 1999, the Company entered into 2 Senjor Secured Revelving Cradit

Facility”) with its commercial bank. The Credit Facility provides for maximaem eredit of §4
limitations based on financial coven

ant calculations. The Crédit Facility is comprised
component of $15 million at an interest rate of LIBOR plus 4.0% at Jun 000

:

component of $7 million at an interest rate of LIBOR Plus 4.0% at Jung 30, 2000 an
prime rate, 9.5% at June 30, Plus 1.25%. As of June 30, 2000, the total hterest ruf
bank Credit Facility ranged from 8.8% to 10.75%. The Company alse pays & fée of H.40
unused portion of the line of credit.

The Credit Facility is collateralized by substantially all of the assets of the Company. Visder o

Credit Facility, the Company is required to maintain certain financisl ratios ung Gtar & <o
ratios include a debt to a four quarter rolling eamings befors interest, taxes and depeecintion i
(EBITDA) ratio, a ratio of fixed charges (interest and debt paymentsy to ERITDA, snd T
EBITDA. The agreement also prohibits the Company from incurring additional indelitedngss,

In July 2000, the Company and its lenders amended its credit agrsement 16 proy
covenants and extended the maturity date until April 30, 2001 and % & result the o
classified as a current Hability. The Company raised $7.5 million of additionat finaned
proceeds were used to reduce the outstanding balance on the credit facility. As of Tune
in compliance with all terms of the agreement with the lenders, The maximum Aot
facility available to the Company is dependent upon the Company's financial performarc
covenants, the Company’s maximum borrowings at June 30, 2000 we less than 40

Subordinated Note Payable

The Company issued a subordinated note payable of $3.75 mil
significant shareholder of the Company.
at June 30, 2000) which is payable ix
warrants to purchase 25




T-NETIX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

(#) Stockbolders Equity
Preferred Stock Offering’

In April 2000, the Company issued 3,750 shares of our Series A Convertible Redeemable Preferred Stack
and o five-year stock purchase warrant exercisable for 340,909 shares at $6.60 per share of the Company’s
common stock to RGC International Investors, LLC, a fund managed by Rose Glen Capital Management LP. The
Company allocated the fair value of the warrants ($1.1 million) to additional puid-in capital and recognized &
discount on the preferred shares issued. The net proceeds from the issuance were $3.5 million. et of oifentig
costs, The Comipany also issued warrants to purchase 50,000 shares of common stock to the broker on the sale
the preferred stock at an exercise price of $6.60 per share. The stock purchase warrants were valued at fale valug
{$163,000) using the Black-Scholes model and are being amortized as accretion of discount on preferred stock -
over the term of the preferred stock.

The preferred stock is convertible into common stock at a variable conversion price based on the closing
market price of the common stock during a pricing period of 5 consecutive trading days during the 22 consectitive
trading days preceding conversion, up to a “fixed” conversion price. The fixed convetsion prive iy the lower of
$6.03 per share or 110% of the market price of the Company's common stock for 10 duys ending on Augas 17,
2000 if it is below $6.05. With limited exceptions relating to a change in control of the Company, duting the i
month period after the issuance of the preferred stock, the preferred stock is not convertible into the cun
stock unless the market price of the common stock equals or exceeds the fixed convetsion prics. After thes
menth period, the Company has the right repurchase the preferred stock upon receipt of notice to converd the
preferred shares into common stock, if the market price of the common stock is less that the fixed conversion
price, .

The preferred stock is redeemable at the option of the Company, subject to certain restrictions, if the o
price of the Company’s common stock is less than or equal to $4.00 for 10 consesutive days. The redemptivg
subject to notice requirements. The cash redemption price is the greater of 120% of the Hquidation prefersne
a value based on the number of shares of common stock issuable upon conversion of the preferred
multiplied by the highest closing price of the common stock during a period from notice of redermption untibthe .
redemption date. Redemption of the preferred stock is mandatory at its maturity date, Apel 17, 2003; upon
assignment of all ‘assets of the Company; bankruptcy; failure to maintain a Nasduq listing: or falluee t et
certain other terms set forth in the preferred stock agreements.

The preferred stock is non-voting and pays no dividends. In the event of liquidation, dissotution of winding
up of the Company, or major transaction, including merger or sale or disposal of 50% of the company., the holders.
of the preferred stock are entitled to a liquidation preference of 8% per annum.

The Company accounted for these transactions in accordance with ETIF 98-5, “Accounting for Convertible:
Securities with Beneficial Conversion Features or Contingently Adjustable Conversion Rutios.” The compan
recognized an increase in additional paid in capital in the amount of $771,800 for the value of the Bensi :
conversion, The Company will accrete the resulting discount in the preferred stock to loss applicable to comnon:
stockholders over the six-month period beginning April 17, 2000.

{5) Segment Information

The Company has three reportable segments; the Corrections Divisions, the SpeakBZ. Division, and
Internet Services Division. The Company evaluates performance based on carnings (fass} before inceme &
Additional measures include operating income, depreciation and amortization, and interest expense, T & B
intersegment sales. The Company’s reportable segments are specific business units that offer ditferent products
and services. They are managed separately because each business requires differsnt technoltgy and mrk
strategies. The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as those deseribed in the sumim

10



T-NETIX, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

- NOTES TG CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS o {Continmaty

(5) Segment Information — (Continued)

significant accounting policies. Segment information for the three and six months ended Juse 30, 36 ) anet 19
is as follows (amounts in thousands):

Thiree Moathy Eunded
.. e 30,

REVENUE FROM EXTERNAL CUSTOMERS:
Corrections Division

SpeakEZ Division

...............................
..................

...............

.........................

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS): _ .
Comections Division ..., ... .. . . . .. . oo SUBIAGY 8 1% S
SpeakEZ Division (3383 (374

e

....................

.........................

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION:
Corrections Division
SpeakEZ Division ........ ... ..
Internet Services Division

..............................
N T

..........................

INTEREST AND OTHER EXPENSE, NET: -
CorrectionsDivision.....................,.,..-“.s § Q67§ @ )
SpeakEZ Division ... . . .o e (308% 3y

Internet Services Division

...........................

o)
SEGMENT EARNINGS (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME
TAXES:
Corrections Dwxsxon SEL3I6Y SO0 8¢
SpeakEZDivision.............‘.k.-....u‘““”- By
Internet Services Division B PP .

§(L166r s02,

SEGMENT ASSETS:
Corrections Division
SpeakEZ Division

.....-.....--.......4~‘-4;r¢‘~;kc,a.-;>-

There was no intersegment revenue for the three months ended June 30, 2000 ;
10 arrive at net earnings (loss) included an income tax (expenise} benefit of SEH3.80
months ended lune 30, 2000 apd 1999, respectively. Consolidated totaf A3

approximately $12.7 million and $13.0 millivn as of June 30, 2060 and Decormbsr
Eliminations consist of intercompany rec
SpeakEZ Divisior related sole

eivables in the Cormrections Dividon and
ly to intercompany borrowing of the SpeskEZ Division.
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FTEM 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

For a comprehensive understanding of our financial condition and performance, this discussion should be
considered in the context of the condensed consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes and sther
information contained herein.

. The Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 provides a “safe harbor” for forward-fooking
statements. Certain information contained in this Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations and elsewhere in this Form 10-Q includes forward-looking statements. Imperiant
factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those in the forward-looking statements inefude;
but are not limited to, those listed under the caption “Risk Factors” in the Company’s Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 1999, which may affect the potential technological obsolescence of existing systems, the
rencwal of existing site specific Corrections and Internet Service Division customer contracts, the ability to retain
the base of current site specific customer contracts, the ability to perform under conteactual perforniance
requirements, the continued relationship with existing customers, the ability to win new contracts for our praduets:
and services, including Lock & Track™, Contain® and our Internet Services Division, the ability of our existiig:
gustomers, including AT&T, to maintain their market share of the inmate calling market, the suéces:
intogration of Gateway Technologies, Inc. into our business, our ability to penetrate the market for
management systems, the ability to reduce expenditures in the SpeakEZ Division and to successfully lise
voice verification and fraud prevention technology, the effect of economic conditions, the effect of regultati
including the Telecommunications Act of 1996 that could affect our sales or pricing, the impact of competitive:
products and pricing particularly in the our Corrections Division, our continuing ability to develop hardware and’
software products, commercialization and technological difficulties, manufacturing eapacity and produdt supply
constraints or difficulties, actual purchases by current and prospective customers under existing and expeeted
agreements, and the results of financing efforts, along with the other risks detailed therein.

Overview

Acquisition of Gateway Technologies, Inc.

On June 14, 1999, we completed our merger with Gateway Technologies, Inc. or “Guteway™ by exchunging
3,672,234 shares of our common stock for all of the common stock of Gateway. Eack share of Gatoway wig
exchanged for 50375 shares of our common stock. In addition, outstanding Gateway steck options werg
converted at the same exchange rate into options to purchase approximatety 379,000 shares of out common stoek.

The merger constituted a tax-free reorganization and has been accounted for as a pooling of Interests yrnider
Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 16, Accordingly, all prior period infonmation contained in this
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Resuits of Operations has beer restited
include the combined results of operations, financial position and cash flows of T-NETIX and Gateway as though
Gateway had always been a part of T-NETIX. ‘

In addition, in connection with the merger transaction, T-NETIX issued 375,341 shares of commion stockto- -
certain shareholders of Gateway in exchange for their terminating a royalty agreement with Gateway. The royulty
agreement related to automated call processing technology and intellectual property rights thut were assigned Lo
Gateway by the royalty owners in exchange for royalty payments. The termination of the royslty owners® fnterests.
resulted in the acquisition of an intangible asset. The asset has been recorded at its estimated fale vakos, ot
52,487,000, The fair value is based on the value of T-NETIX common stack at February 16, 1999 {date of the
berger Agreement), or $6.625, multiplied by the number of shares issued in exchange for termination of the:
royaity owners' interests. The intangible asset has an estimated useful jife of 10 years, the remaining termof the
underlying patent.

Corrections Division

in the Corrections Division we derive revenue from three main sources: telecommunications seevices, direur
28l provisioning and equipment sales. Each form of revenue has specific and varying operting costs sssecinted
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with such revenue. Selling, general and administrative expenses, plong with resesrch amd ey
depreciation and amortization are cOmmon expenses regardless of the revenue generated. '

Telecommunications services revenue is generated under long-tern COntracts. Prici
for transaction fees paid on a per-call basis. We are paid a prescribed fee for each ¢all ¢
fees for validating phone numbers dialed by inmates. The per-call charge is prnmnly for
specialized call processing services to telecommunications service providers for thelr custor
facilities. However, recently we entered into a contract amendment with & significant euston
as a percentage of gross revenue earned by the customer, subject to certiin adjustments.
effort by us to have our pricing remain flexible and not be effected by factors that adfected call
to the amendment, we also recognized certain telecommunications expenses thait were
charges to this customer. These charges were previously reimbursable costs to the customer. ©
tions service provider customers include AT&T, Bell Atlantic, Qwest (formerly US WEST). SH
tions (including Ameritech), BellSouth, Sprint and GTE.

As a direct inmate call provider, we buy “wholesale” call services to be re-soli as
services of third parties to bill the collect calls. We then enter inito dirsct contracts with the ¢t
and generally pay to the correctional facilities commissions on the gross billed revenue. Th
are consistent with the collect call rates charged by the incumbent local exchange cutrier ot “IL
service area and the predominant interexchange carrier or “IXC". Since all calls oeiginati
phones are collect calls, each phone generates higher-than-industry-average revesnues. The
creditworthiness of the billed parties results however in a higher-than-industey-averags uncall

Equipment sales and other revenue includes the sales of our inmate calling systerand

sales of the inmate calling system are generally made to only one custamer. We th

fees to keep the system operational. Sales to this custormer catt vary depending vpon the suee
in winning contracts with correctional facilities.

Internet Services Division

In December 1999, we entered into a master service agreement with US WES”
to provide interLATA Intemnet services to US WEST customers. The contesct, COHI
1999, calls for us to buy, resell and process billing of Internet bandwidth to tis customer
US WEST is for a minimum of sixteen months,

We recognized significant Internet Services revenue and related costy. tor the e
June 30, 2000 under this agreement. Our gross margin on these services was (8% and ¥
months ended June 30, 2000, respectively. The gross margin is effected by the negotiate
and contract incentive payments, The costs associated with this contract fre prinin
bandwidth, There were no capital outlays required to begin provisioning these seevicay
adding personnel to expand the service offerings of the Interriet Services Division beyond
contract.

Extension of the contract beyond the minimum sixteen-month period is dependent upo
approval process in various states. In the event that US WEST receives regulatory approval
telecommunications services during or after the initial sixteen month period, our Inteetict Sernie
be reduced significantly or eliminated.

Speaker Verification Division

We completed consolidation of our SpeakEZ operations (o our Englewood faeility
reorganization included a change in marketing strategy from a direct customery sales sud
licensing strategy. A direct customer sales strategy markets a specifically developed: s
specific, end user customer. The strategy is then to find other specific custonmers whi has
systems and market this product to these customers. In contrast, 2 technology
larger scale customer who can integrate the SpeakEZ software product Intd its existing pirod
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customer, such as a computer manufactucer, would thien be responsible fof the produgt BeEn
delivery to the end user customer.

Even with the changes in marketing strategy. there caf be U &89
SpeakEZ technology will ‘achieve the necessary matket scueptafes ot
speaker verification software has only recently begun t¢ develop. As st
evolving market, demand and market acceptance for recently ;
high level of uncertainty. Our voice pring revenue bas been winrmal to dste,

Results of Operations for the Three Months Ended June 30, 2
The following table sets forth certain stafement of operativns datl 68 & PUENEES BF beal v
three months ended June 30, 2000 and 1999,

Revenue:

Telecommunications services. .. .. U

Direct call provisioming . ...c... . P L L e

Internet SErvices ... ... «- e ierirevsussrusccemREEEST

Equipment sales and other...... e iiiserisescucEEsseEEESGEEEIEELCTS

Total revenu

Expenses:

Operatmgcosts,

Selling, general and Administrative ... osvarcsessicssoss

Research and development ..... ks rEwssugEE e

Depreciation and AIMOMIZALON « .+ ¢ cxvrvvsvnomsasosssoorrasesribnss

"Operating loss ..... R
Merger transaction EXPERSES « « .« v vcrvsscsorevressoo
Interest and other eXpense .. ... -x« cesesrvessvTEE S

Loss before inCOME AXES « v v veevsarvessosraymsnaoasion i
Income tax (expense) benefit. ..o oov v uiiisieapnrrnrueenas
Net loss. ... R
Accretion of discount on redeernable eonverible prefermd SR
Net loss applicable to common GIOEK s cwe perosvo s
_ Total Revenue. Total revenue for the dires months ended Juse ¥ b R wa
1% over $17.8 million for the comrespanding prioe period. Thiv
commencement of Internet services, a8 well g3 incronss )
sales and other offset, in part by decreases in dircct call provish
The 19% increase in telecommunications Servicey revenne ¥
June 30, 2000, from $10.1 million for the corresponding prior pesied
prices. We changed our pricing to & significant custos by
customer’s gross revenue versus a transaction fee per el |
1o call yolume increases, primarily due © the addition of few |

Direct call provisioning revenuc increased to ¥7.2 miltion for 9
$7.0 million in the corresponding prior peredd. Thik ince 2
provisioning the long distance service. The addition of sites Is g
competitive bidding arrangements for contracts directly with cormraitn

The Internet Services contract commenced in Decomber § £
suhseribers and contract incentive pEyments. Intoemel prosy A for e W IR L
18%.
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Equipment sales and other revenue increased 25% to 8260010 Tor the e 550
from $660,000 in the corresponding prior period. Such sales ate g
tions service pr0v1d~r customer and are dependent upon the mm‘ g of
customer’s success rate in its territory. In the three mionths
$676,000 to this telecommunications service provider COSIOHIRE. WS
the near future.

Operating costs. Total operating costs were $18.0 million i the three mouths
increase of 64% from $1€.9 million in the cﬂﬂmptmdmef prior perlod. The It
commencement of Internet services as well as increases in telecotms :
sold and other expenses offset by a reduction in direet call groviss

systems repair a 'md maintenance e'cpeﬁsez Og:emimg Losts

associated with call verification procedures, prinariy etwnek SRS
costs associated with direct call prmnsmmﬁg mﬁ’éﬁén il
distance charges, commissions pmd o i

includes pnmanlv the purchas:: pnce af eqmpm:m miz i
minimal. Voice print operating costs include royalty churges, thevalt
amounts are reflected as other operating costk

The following table sets forth the operating costs wnd &%
corresponding revenue for the three months ended fune 36 2006 und

Operating costs:
Telecommunications ServiCes. .. ccvrcvrovssrsass
Direct call provisioning .....vcovsvevcvsvnanes
Internet services .. ......v..s ciecsrsies
Cost of equipment sold and othee. . c.ocvoccovucasns

"Operating costs associated with providing teleeomui &:ah"m A5
revenue was 45% for the three months ended Junie 56, 2008,
period. The increase was due primarily to cost increses. ‘Emf mf% £
were $5.4 million for the three months ended Jume 3, 200
The increase in 2000 is due to pew services being provisios

extent, increases in travel and contrsct Tabor contributed 1o the €
personnel at our National Service Center and based on contract
operations personnel in the near future.

Direct call provisioning costs as 4 percentage of gppih
the three months ended June 30, 2000 an incease from 2%
include increases due to site commissions and transurissions
because of improved collections.

The contract for Internes services commenced in Dtusay
upon the base of subscribers and additional contrict incentive
increased in the three months ended Jone 39, 0{7{3 amﬁ zﬁwgn




Selling, General and Administrative Expenses. Selling, general and administrative expenses were $4.6-mil=
fjon for the three months ended June 30, 2000 compared to $3.3 mitlion for the corresponding. prios
Selling, general and administrative expenses associated with the Corrections Divigion were $4.5 willion:t
three months ended June 30, 2000 compared to $3.1 million in the corresponding prior period. The increas
three months ended June 30, 2000 was primarily due to increases in salary and benefits for additionsl per
from raises for existing personnel and the installation bonus program, Other expenses, including tra
professional fees, increased due to the integration of Gateway’s operations, We anticipate selting, gene
administrative expenses to remain consistent with current levels in the near future. -

Research and Development Expenses. Research and development expenses were $1.6 tnitliom i
months ended June 30, 2000 compared to $1.3 million for the corresponding prior period: Ri
development expenses for the Corrections Division were $1.3 million in the thre¢ months ended June 30,
and $1.1 million in the corresponding prior pericd. The increase was primarily due to increas
gxpenses. We anticipate research and development expenses to remain consistent for the remainder of the

Depreciation and Amortization Expenses. Depreciation and amortization expense was $3.1 miillio
three months ended June 30, 2000, an increase from $2.8 million for the corresponding prier period. Fhgwigres
was due primarily to the depreciation associated with new site installations.

Merger Transaction Expenses. These expenses were directly related to the merger with Gatews
gmonnted to approximately $827,000 for the three months ended June 30, 1999, Merger transaction
consisted primarily of fees for investment bankers, attorneys, accountants, financial printing snd other el
charges. -

Interest and Other Expense, Net. Interest and other expense, net was $673,000 for the three mont
June 30, 2000, an increase from $633,000 for the corresponding prior period. included inother ineom
three months ended June 30, 2000 is a gain of approximately $46,000: on the sale: of used telecorn
equipment. Interest expense was $719,000 for the three months ended June 30, 2000, and 56
corresponding prior period. The increase in 2000 was attributable to an incredse in the nverage
indebredness outstanding and an increase in interest rates. The average debt balunce inceeased priman
the increase in capital expenditures.
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Results of Operations for the Six Months Ended June 30, 2000 Compared 1o Juse 30, i9eg

The following table sets forth certain statement of operations data as a percentuge of fotal revent
months ended June 30, 2000 and 1995.

Revenue:
TelecOmMMUNICAIONS SEFVICES . .. v vv v vsvarrcrrurrrrocsss
Direct call proviSioning . .........cvsrencnrnsanrrrrreremsery
TOEINEt SEIVICES . . v v vven v inrananrenrnnsrovseves
Equipment sales and other..........c.c0vee AP
TOLAl TEVEIIUE . v v v v vnvrvrnerrnrassiasemussrsysiusesosyirusysdns
Expenses:
Operating CoStS . « ... vuvrvencnvancamsarrenrrss
Selling, general and administrative .. .... Mirersiesnens
Research and development ........cooevrrrvercnnes fersesrssys
Depreciation and amortization. .. ... ... ceecrasrarrrrrenarenest
Operating 10Ss .. ....ovoviimcrevnns s ek ecues
Merger transaction EXPENSES . ... ... .cvererenrmsrrsasantoTns
Interest and other expense ....... e R LA
Loss before income taxes ........- R L T
Income tax (expense) benefit........oonuv eerenvaans feesescvsenTRRLEEERES Y
Netloss..orvvenerraeecnns Cevens J T P R T T L
Accretion of discount on redeemable convertible preferred GORK coevvecssesonys
Net loss applicable to common StOCK . . «v v v vvvvsnerrrermreesuvermnes

Total Revenue. Total revenue for the six months eaded June 30, 2000 was $50.3
over $35.5 million for the comresponding prior period. This increase way peioanily 4t
commencement of Internet services, as well as increases in telecommunicatians FELVISEL FEVELUN
provisioning revenue offset in part by decreases in equipment sales and other. '

The 11% increase in telecommunications services revenue to §20E mitlion
2000, from $19.9 million for the corresponding priot period, was due primariiy t
We changed our pricing to a significant customer whereby reventic is caleulated
gross revenue versus a transaction fee per call. In addition we experienced an incregse
volume increases, primarily due to the addition of new sites.

Direct call provisioning revenue increased 7% to $14.5 million for the six months caded 1t
$13.5 million in the corresponding prior period. This increase was due i the sddition o
which we are provisioning the long distance service. The addition of sites iy pnian
successful in competitive bidding arrangements for contracts directly with coreedonal

The Internet Services contract commenced in December 1999. Future revenoe lnerenses y
the base of subscribers and additional contract incentive payments.

Equipment sales and other revenue decreased 43% to $1.2 million for the six ot
from $2.1 million in the corresponding prior period. Such sales are primarily associated with
5 : tions service provider customer and are dependent upon the timing of installations f
§ customer's success rate in its territory. In the six months ended June 30, 2000
' $1.1 million to this telecommunications service provider customer, The geductio
June 30, 2000 from the corresponding prior period is dug primarily to the timing

Operating costs. Total operating costs were $34.% miltion in the six ganthe onl
increase of 57% from $21.9 million in the corresponding priae period. The ergases were p
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commencement of Internet services as well as increases in telecommunicativn servies and dirmct ol
provisioning expenses offset by a reduction in the cost of equipment sold snd othier sxpenses.

Operating costs of telecommunications services primarily consist of servide
correctional facilities, including salaries and related personnel expenses, cOmMUnICHto
systems repair and maintenance expense. Operating costs of telecommunications SEHAEes @
associated with call verification procedures, primarily network sxpenses and databise acess
costs associated with direct call provisioning include the costs associated with tetephons
distance charges, commissions paid to correctional facilities, costs aesocinted with aacoliegube
billing charges. Internet Services expense consists of Internet pandwidth costs. Cost F eguiprient S
includes primarily the purchase price of eguipment which is resold, Other equiprent &0t S
minimal. Voice print operating costs include royalty charges, the cast of Rardware snd the vost of
amounts are reflected as other operating COSts.

The following table sets forth the operating costs and Sxenses for sack type of revenug Ge & SRS wk
corresponding revenue for the six months ended June 30, 2000 and 1999,

Operating costs:

Telecommunications serv1ces»
Direct call provisioning . . «...-c-eeersecr
Internet SErviCes . ...« covvorrmmrsmrsr et
Costofequipmemsoldandcther...,......t..*.“...“H,,«."““ ;

Operating costs associated with providing telecommunications services is ¢
revenue was 45% for the six months ended June 30, 2000, an increast from 4
period, The increase was due to cost increases. Totl 1elacommuntcalions |
$9.9 million for the six months ended June 30, 2000 and $8.5 miltian fof
increase in 2000 is due to new services being provisioned for & &
amendment and due to increases in personnel costs. The increase ingluded bom ¢
installation bonus program. The bonus program ended as of June 10, 2000, Alse. B
the National Service Center and other operational suppost functivas contribuded t cost MG
extent, increases in travel, consulting services, repairs and mainisnanee conttibuted e the e

Direct call provisioning costs as a percentage of applicable revenue dernased te Yt of povi
months ended June 30, 2000 from 93% in for the corresponding print peghoed. This 6
a reduction in bad debt expense because of improved collections.

The contract for Internet services comnmenced i Decernber 19
decreased in the six months ended June 30, 2000 but increased as ¥ pecenia
corresponding prior primarily due to the change in the reveaue iy foe squipie

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses. Selling, general and sdrbnisteive 4%
lion for the six months ended June 30, 2000 compared o $6.6 mitlion fo s
general and administrative expenses associated with the Corrections Diasi
months ended June 30, 2000 compared to $6.2 million in the correspending prias pe
months ended June 30, 2000 was primarily due to increases in suliry s beoelits e ndhditinil paRien
raises for existing personnel and the installation bonus programt. Cotbr expenses fnreasad 65 ¢
communications and professional fees due to the integration of Galewiy Speraions.

Research and Development Expenses. Research and developmiest expensis | weit 5
months ended June 30, 2000 compared to S2.6 million for the COCEpd
development expenses for the Corrections Division were $2.4 million irs the $ix el
$2.2 million in the corresponding prior period. The increase was prinsarily due 1o sighey
CO5tS.
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Depreciation and Amortization Expenses. Depreciation and. amortization gxpen
six months ended June 30, 2000, an increase from $5.7 million for the corresponding pr
was due primarily to the depreciation associated with new site installatioss.

Merger Transaction Expenses, These expenses were directly related to the s '
amounted to approximately $1.0 million for the six months ended June 30, 1999 Merga
consisted primarily of fees for investment bankers, attorneys, accountants, finaneial prir
charges.

Interest and Other Expense, Net. Interest and other expense, net was $1.0' million for
June 30, 2000, a decrease from $1.1 million for the corresponding pricr period, fneludsg
six months ended June 30, 2000 is a gain of approximately $334,000 or the sale of w
equipment. There was $59,000 of miscellaneous other income in the six monithis efided
expense was $1.4 million for the six months ended June 30, 2000, and $1.0 miflion for e
period. The increase in 2000 was attributable to an increase in the average arount of indebs
and an increase in interest rates. The average debt balance increased primarily die 16 the
expenditures and business acquisitions,

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Cash Flows

We incurred losses from continuing, operations for-the six months ended June 38 2%
had a working capital deficit of $30.8 million 4t June 30, 2000. I July 2000 our

agreement to provide for revised financial coverants. Additionally, we raised
financing in April 2000. The net praceeds were used to reduce the outstanding bak
are taking steps to improve our cash flow from operations, including renegoiia
control measures in order to carry out the remainder of our fiscal 2000 business o
assurance that we will be successful in Increasing our cash flow from: operim
financing to fund our operations. In the event additional finanicing Is required, we gy
financing on terms acceptable to us and we may have to curtain operitings.

We present the following information for the six months ended June 30, 2000 and 1960
2000 and December 31, 1999: ’

Cash provided by operating activities
Working capital deficit

We have historically relied upon commercial borrowings, operating cash fow an
securities to fund our operations and capital needs. Cash provided by operations decroages
for the six months ended June 30, 2000 from $5.3 million in the correspondi
increase in the net loss, reductions in accounits payable, and increases it actounts reesivibl
working capital deficit.is primarily due to the classification of the bank credit facilin
facility is April 30, 2001. '

Purchases of property and equipment were $8.5 million in the six mém}xs‘-ﬁm‘z“d&d‘}ﬁ
§6.3 million for the corresponding prior period. The 36% increase in purchases of props
primarily due to additional inmate calling system instaliations and upgrades to «xi

Debt and Equity
We have been funding our operations primarily from available borrowings under s i

cash provided by operations. Due to cur capital requirements for new instailations st

in September 1999, we entered into a Senior Secured Revolving Credit Facility ¢“Credit Hag
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‘commercial bank. The maximum amount of credit under the credit facility available o the ©
upon the Company's financial performance. Based on the financial covenants. the Coripany
borrowings at June 30, 2000° were less than $40 million. In July 2000 our lenders amended ourcredi
to revise certain financial covenants. In addition, we raised $7.5 million of debt and equity fran
2000, The net proceeds of approximately $7.2 million were used to reduce the outytanding balanee of 1

Facility.

We anticipate that our capital expenditures in 2000 will be consistent with 1999 bised o Guea
growth in installed systems at correctional facilities. We believe our Credit Facility and cas
operations will be sufficient in order for us to meet our anticipated cash needs for anticipated new i
inmate call processing systems and upgrades of existing systems and to finance cur operations T
{2 months. However, there can be no assurance that we will be suceesstul im increasing ou
operations and we may require additional financing to fund operations. It the event sdditiott
tequired, we may not be able to obtain financing on terms acceptable to us and we muy have W
operations,

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure About Marker Risk

We are exposed to interest rate risk as discussed below.

Interest Rate Risk

We have current debt outstanding under the credit facility of $26.7 million at June 30, 2K
facility bears interest at differing rates including, $22 million at LIBOR plus 4.0%: and the rerrain
the prime rate, 9.5% at June 30, 2000, plus 1.25%. Interest on LIBOR rate loans iy payable
interest period applicable to the loan but not longer than every six months. Interest on prime rate foans
every six months. Since the interest rates on the loans outstanding are vanable and are reset
exposed to interest rate risk. An increase in interest rates of 1% would increase sstimated annual wmitdie
by approximately $280,000 based on the amount of borrowings outstanding ander the line of credi
2000.
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PART II OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal Prbceedings

From time to time we have been, and expect to continue to be subjset to various legal and aditin
proceedings or various clairns in the normal course of our business. Wi believe the ultt 8
matters will not have a material affect on our financial condition, liquidity, or resulty of operbans,

In a case brought in the First Judicial District Court of the State of New Mexive, styled Vald
New Mexico, et. al., the complaint joins as defendants the State of New Mexics, severtl polit
the State of New Mexico and several inmate telecommunications sevvice providess, mnelisd
Gateway. The complaint includes a request for certification by the court of a plaistifis” clags awho
all persons who have been billed for and paid for telephone calls initiated by an inmate confis
detention center or other New Mexico correctional facility. The complaint sileges violations af”;
Unfair Practices Act, the New Mexico Antitrust Act and the New Metice Constitution, and gl
enrichment, constructive trust, economic compulsion, constructive fraud wnd Hiegs
connection with the provision of “collect only” inmate telecommunications seéevie

likelihood of an unfdvorable outcome is low, there can E}c bila} Aﬁsumnw émt a jﬂégnwn? ags
defendant providers will not ultimately be entered.

Gateway is a defendant in a case brought in United States Drsteicy Court Western IRsteive of €
Louisville, styled Gus “Skip™ Daleure, Jr., et al vs. Commonwealth of Kentucky, ¢r ol. Phe-cop
joined as defendants several states, political subdivisions of states. sl inmae serd
providers and was filed contemporaneously with a request for certfication by the coust e
class action consisting of all persons who have received and gaid for telephone egf
prison, jail or other correctional institution for the provision of “collect valy™
services. The complaint sought declaratory and injunctive relief and money damages i
alleged violations of the Sherman Antitrust Act, the Robinson-Patman St aad the 118,
court held, on motions to dismiss; Kentucky did not have personal jurisdiction over ii&ftmkmi&ﬁ
doing business in the state of Kentucky; that telephone calls are not goads or conmediti
subject to the antitrust provisions of the Robinson-Patman Acts that Plalnutly did not state s chid
the Equal Protection Clause of the Fourteenth Amendment; and that Plalits had net shavws
of its antitrust claim under Section 1 of the Sherman Act. The trial judge did not, however,
prayer for injunctive relief, despite these findings. The case ts currently subject o apipes)
Second Circuit Court of Appeals. Although Gateway believes the Bistrict Court holding will sot be
is possible the in may be and there can be no assurance that a judgment against & class of the et
ultimately be entered.

Yem 2. Changes in Securities and Use of Proceeds

None

Item 3. Defaults Upon Sznior Securities

None.
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‘Submission of Matters to.a Vote of Security. Holders

; 12, 2000 -the Company held its Annual Meeting of Sharehiolders to-elect
o hold office until the 2003 Annual Meeting of Stockholders or until their resp
4 and qual_iﬁc’d. and to ratify the selection of KPMG LLP; independent audito
@y for the year ending December 31, 2000. The directors were elected and:
sdent auditors with the following voting results; 10,712,465 FOR; 113,281 ¢
HHOLD.

tiens 5. Other Information
None.

\temi 6. Exhibits and Reports on Form 8-K
(a) Exhibits

10,12 — First Amendment to Loan Agreement $40,000,000: Revo
Bank One, Colorado, NA, COBANK, ACB, and ENTRUS
2000.

27 — Financial Data Schedule,

(1) The Company filed a Form S-Kb dated April 19, 2600 reporting the following:

ftem 5 on Form 8-K regarding additional equity financing.

22



SIGNATURES-

“Pursuant to thc requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934;. f_heRegmtma
eport to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized; ‘

T-NETIX, INC.
(Registranty

By: 51 A

Date August 14, 2000
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T-NETIX INTERNET SERVICES,

INC.

TITLE SHEET

SOUTH DAKOT2A TELECOMMUNICATIONS TARIE

This tariff contains the descriptions, regulaticng,
rates applicable to the furnishing of service or faecil
Telecommunications Services furnished by T-NETIX Inter §£<gl

“Services, Inc. ("T-NETIX"), with principal offices at 67
Inverness Drive East, Englewood, Colorade 80112. 7This ta

applies for services furnished within the State of Seouth

This tariff is on file with the South Dakota Public Uk
Commission, and copies may be inspected, duvring normal Ba

hours, at the company’s principal place of businessg.

ISSUED: September 22, 2000 EFECTLY
ISSUED BY: Nancy K. Lee, Executive Vice Pres‘dent
67 Inverness Drive East
Englewcod, Colorads 80112



TESUED : September 52, 2000
1SSUED BY: Nancy K. Lee, Executive Vice I
67 Inverngss prive Bas

Englewcod, Colorads BO1LE




T-NETIX INTERNET SERVICES, INC. -
SOUTH DAKOTA P

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES

RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE




T-NETIX INTERNET SERVICES, INC. - OR
SOUTH DAKOT
TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TA

CHECK SHEET

The Sheets of this tariff are effective ag of
at the bottom of the respective sheet{s). ¢z
sheets as named below comprise all changes frem
tariff and are currently in effect as of ths ¢
of this sheet.

SHEET REVISION
1 Criginal
2 Original
3 Original
4 Original
5 Original
6 Original
7 Criginal
8 Original
9 Original

10 Original

11 Criginal

12 Original

13 Original

14 Original

15 Original

16 Original

17 Original

18 Criginal

1% riginal

20 Original

21 Original

22 Original

23 Original

24 Original

25 Criginal

26 Original

27 Original

28 Original

29 Criginal

30 Criginal

31 Original

32 Criginal

* New or Revised Sheet

ISSUED: September 22, 2000 = by

ISSUED RY: Nancy K. Lee, Executive Vies Prasident
67 Inverness Drive Esgk

Englewood, Coclorade 80112




P-NETIX INTERNET SERVICES,

7irle SheelC......--- e aa st
nesarved for Future Use€..coevvens
rpeck Sheet.....reeorrooror” e

££ Formal....--- e e

18 e s onersors T

on 1 i

on 2 - Rules and RegulationS......ecvsesrs
2.1 Undertaking of the COmMPanYy..-««v-v-**"
2.2 Use of ServiCeS..asserers

2.3 Liability of the COMPANY..sesscrec"
2.4 Responsibilities of the CustoOmEL..sx«v~
2.5

2.6 Credit Allowance.....--

» . 7 Restoration of Service.

2.8 DeposSit...ce-errreneees

2.9 Advance PaymentsS......-

SEICEIS R
s
}—..l

2.14 Returned Check Chardge.....
Section 3 - pDescription of Service..
5.1 Cemputation of ChargesS...:
3.2 Customer Complaints and/or
3.3 Level of SerViCB..veacsrcs
3.4 Billing Entity Conditions.
3.5 Service OfferingsS. . oo
certicn 4 - Rates.......wreerneroors

~1e of ContentsS....aeeeeeeeerrs

- Technical Terms and Zbbreviations .« v«

cancellation oOr Interruption of Servids

payment and Billing....
collection Costs......-
TAKES . eoeeomsconmooosss”
Late Charge....cseeevs-

-
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-

-

-
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ISG8UED: September 22, 2000

ISSUED BY:

Nancy K. Lee, Executive Vice Prassiden

67 Inverness prive East
Englewood, Colorade BO11Z




T“NETIX’INTERNET SERVICES, INC.

A. Sheet Numbe
right corner of the
However, new sheets
new sheet 1s added bpeiween ;
added. For example, a DeW sheel
would be pagde 11.1.

B. Sheet Revision Numbeazs:

the upper right corner of each &
numbers are used tO indicate the
file with the Commission. For &
cancels 3rd Revised Sheet 13, O
sheets currently in effsct.

Cc. ©Paragraph Numbering S5 4

paragraph coding. Each level of
next higher level:

2.

2.1

2.1.1

2.1.1.A

2.1.1.A.1
2.1.1.A.1. (&}
2.1.1-Aﬂl.iai.1
2.1.1.A41.{a}‘i,¥i
2.1.1.A.1.{a}.2,zi

D. Check Sheels! i
Commission, &n updated Che
The Check Sheet 1igts the 8
cross reference to Lhe <
are added, the check Zh
All revisions made in & ¢
asterisk (*) . There wWiil
if these are the only i
remains the Same, jus?
The tariff user ghoulid
out if a particu h
Commissicn.

3

T b

TESUED: September 22, FO00
1SSUED BY: Nancy K. Lee, Executive Vics
67 Inverness Drive

Englevood, Colorads BU



T-NETIX INTERNET SERVICES, INC. ORIGINAL St BT A
SOUTH‘DﬁKQTA'PHE TART ;

TETECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIEE
SYMBOLS

The following are the only symbols used for the puUrptses
indicated below:

(cy to signify change in regulation

(D) to signify a deletion

(1) to signify a rate increase

(L) to signify material relocated in the tariff

(N) to signify a new rate or regulation

(R) to signify a rate reduction

(T) to signify a change in text, but no change in rate
regulation

ISSUED « September 22, 2000 -
I8SUED BY: Nancy K. Lee, Executive Vice Presideéent
67 Inverness Drive East
Englewood, Colorado 80112




T-NETIX INTERNET SERVICES, INC

Access Line - An arrangement from
company or other common carrier, using
switched access, which connects a Customer's
Company's location or switching center.

Authorization Code - A numerical o
may be assigned to a Customer, to enakle
Lhe origin of the Customer so it may rate
Automatic number identification (ANI} is
authorization code wherever possible.

Commission - Used througheout this
Dakota Public Utilities Commission,

Customer - The person, firm, COry
entity which orders the services of
responsible for the payment of charge:
the Company's tariff regulations.

Company or T-NETIX - Used throughout
NETIX Internet Services, Inc., & Colorads

Dedicated Access - The Customsr gaing
services by a direct path from the Cust '
Company's point of presence.
Holiday - New Year's Day, Independ
Thanksgiving Day and Christmas Davy. £ 3
the evening rate from 8 a.m. to i1 28
night rate shall go into effect.

ISSUED: September 22, 2000 EFFECTLY
ISSUED BY: Nancy K. Lee, Executive Vice Prasi

67 Inverness Drive East

Englewocod, Colorade 8011%




INC. RIGINA
SOUTH DAKOTA PUC TAR]
ICES TARIEE

p-NETTX INTERNET SERVICES,
TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERV

rResponsible Organization ©L entity 1G4
tomer that manages and administer:
gement system.

Resp. 0rg -

an B0D service cus
pase and mana
s entry to

the 800 data
gwitched ACCESS ~ The Customer gain :
vices by & fransmission line that is switched th
er to reach the Company's point ©F

aar
1scal exchange carri
Telecommunications — The transmission of volce
communications Oy subject to the transmissioft S8k hilit
rhe services, the transmission of data, facsimile, Efi%e:s
metering, OF other similar communications.
Underlyin Carrier - The telecommunicatis
network facilities provide the technical capak
necessary for the transmission and reception o
telecommunications traffic.
TEE0ED:  September 22, 2000 EFFECTL
TSSUED BY: Nancy K. Lee, Executive Vice praegident
&7 Inverness Drive Bast
Colorado 80112

Englewood,




T-NETIX INTERNET SERVICES,

SECTION 2 -

Undertakind of the Company

This tariff contains rELLL
applicable to intrast i ptereka:
telecommunications services provi
felecommunications petween puints
south Dakota. Services are Furnd
availability of facilities and 8t
conditions of this tariff in CORL
1imitations set forth in the Con
Company's services are provided
and are not intended to be Limit
Company offers service to all t
purchase service from the C©
of the provisions of this
in the Company's services
application with the Compaiy
customer, the services reduesis
requested by t+he Compaily. The
right to examine the credit ©
references of all applicants
Company may examine the cred
applicant prior to accep frig
service applicatianAshali not
Company to provide serviges OF
service if a later chesk of &
is, in the cpinion of the €
interest of the COMPANY - ;
customer's agent for ordering
facilities provided by otrher o6
authorized by the Customer, i
Customer's location to & SELViLE
Company. The customer shall ¥
charges due for such service arrd

ISSUED BY:

September 22, 2000 “UEFE
Nancy K. Lee, Executive Vice Pr
&7 Inverngss prive Bast
Englewood, colorado # 112




T-NETIX INTERNET SERVICES, INC. ORIGINAL SHE!
SOUTH DAKOTA PUC T,

TELECOMMUNICATIONS §

o
b
[

The services provided by the Comps
part of a joint undertaking with
entity providing telecommunicat ions
facilities, or services, but Y i
resale of the Message Toll Servy:
Wide Area Telecommunications Sery
of underlying common carriers wi

subject to the jurisdiction of tF
Commission.

2.1.2 The rates and regulations contained i

tariff apply only to the serviceg f

- by the Company and do not applv, un
otherwise specified, to the Linesg,

facilities, or services provided Iy

exchange telephone COMpany or oblhoer

carriers for use in accessing the ger

the Company.

£y

2.1.3 The Company reserves the right to
length of communications, to dig
furnishing services, or limis
service necessitated by condit. .
control, including, without Limite
of satellite or other trans SLO% meg
Capacity; the revision, alteration or
repricing of the Underlying Car g
tariffed offerings; or whan th &

2.2 Use of Services

2.2.1 The Company's services may be used foy
lawful purpose consistent with the
transmission and switching para
telecommunications facilities ubil
provision of services, subject teo ¢
limitations set forth in this Seck;

2.2.2 The use of the Company's services ts
calls which might reasonably be éx
frighten, abuse, torment, or haras
or in such s way as to unreassopably
with use by others is prohibited,

ISSUED: September 22, 2000 EFFECTIVE:
IS8UED RBRY: Nancy K. Lee, Executive Vice President

67 Inverness Drive East
Englewood, Colorads 80112



T-NETIX INTERNET SERVICES, INC. ORIGINAL
SOUTH DAKOTA PUC TA
TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIEF

2.2.3 The use of the Company's services w
payment for service or attempting to
payment for service by fraudulent me
devices, schemes, false or invalid
or false calling or credit cards is
prohibited.

2.2.4 The Company's services are avaliable
twenty-four hours per day, seven davs'
week.

2.2.5 The Company does not transmit messaqg
the services may be used for that pﬁf'

2.2.6 The Company's services may be denied -
nonpayment of charges or for other wvi
of this tariff.

2,.2.7 Customers shall not use the service ;
under this tariff for any unlawful pu

2.2.8 The Customer is responsible for not

Company immediately of any unauvthoriz
of services.

2.3 Liability of the Company

2.3.1 The Company shall not be liable for -
claim, loss, expense or damage for
lnterruptlon, delay, error, omis
defect in any service, facility or
transmission provided under this t““
caused by the Underlying Carrier, &
God, fire, war, civil disturbance,
government, or due to any other caus
the Company's control.
The Company shall not be liable. for,
shall be fully indemnified. and held i
by the Customer against any claim,
expense, or damage for defamation,
slander, invasion, infringement of ¢
or patent, unauthorized use of any
trade name or service mark, propr:
creative right, or any other lnju*y
person, property or entity arlslng
material, data or information transmit

i3
Lo
Re]

I88UED: September 22, 2000 EFFECTIVE : '
ISSUED BY: Nancy K. Lee, Executive Vice President
67 Inverness Drive East
Englewood, Colorado 80112



S_NETIX INTERMET SERVICES, INC. ORIGINAL SHEET

SOUTH DAKOTA PUC TAR
TELECOWUNI:CATI-ONS SERVICES TARIF-,; e

2.3.3 No agent or employee of any other &
entity shall be deemed to be an 44
employee of the Company.
2.3.4 rReserved for Future Use
2.3.5 Reserved for Future Use
2.3.6 Reserved for Future Use
TEEGED:  September 22, 2000 ~EFFECT

ISBUED BY:

Nancy K. Lee, Executive vice President
67 Inverness Drive East
Englewood, Colorado 80112
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September 22
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: Nancy K
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T-NETIX INTERNET SERVICES, INC.

2.4.6 The Customer shall ens
and/or system is proper
Company's facilities
signals emitted into
are of the proper mode
signal level for the i
subscriber and in compll
set forth in this tar
signals do not dam
personnel, or degr g
Customers. If the Feds
Commission or qmm& wt“
certifying hody ]
ds being Lechnlaaliv &L
electrical connectlon wi
communications &
permit such equip
its channelsg wia~
interface devic
maintain the egu
properly, with resu
Company equwuuauu,,
of servige to other
may, upon writtes
protective eﬁ&“ﬂ*
expense. EL th 1H

&
i} I

may, upnn wrm
Customer’

2.4.7 The Customer mmst
replacenment or reg
eguipment or ;aﬁi

by negligence or

or cthers, &5

or by use of

[

{1
e
4]

[
i
Ke]

If

IESCGF
HS&GAL&

ISSUED: September 22, 2000 ' EFFERL
ISSUED BY: Nancy K. Lee, Executive Vice Preside
67 Inverness Drive Eag
Englewood, Colorade 8G11Z




T-NETIX INTERNET SERVICES, INC. ORIGINAL SHE
SOUTH DAKOTA PUC TARE
TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFE '

2.4.10 The Customer must use the
this tariff in a manner
terms of this tariff and
regulations of all state,
authorities having jurisdici
service.

2.5 Cancellation or Interruption of Services
Z2.5.1 Without incurring iiabi
working days' (defined
the company's business ;
U.S. Mail is delivered) w*mtteﬁ £
Customer, the Company may im
Vb ek
withhold the provisian of ordered
contracted services:
2.5.1.A For nonpayment of any suw
Company for more than ©
days after issuance of
the amount due, unless
is in dispute;
2.5.1.B For vielation of any of the -
provisions of this tarif
2.5.1.C For viclation of any law,
regulation, pcllcy @F Ay
authority having j'
the Company's services
2.5.1.D By reasorn of any order or
of a court, public sepv ;
comuission or federal reg
body or other governing mu
prohibiting the Company §
furnishing its serviﬁési
TEBUED: September 22, 2000 EFFECTIVE:
ISSUED BY: Nancy K. Lee, Executive Vice President

67 Inverness Drive Easgt
Englewood, Colorade 80112




T-NETIX INTERNET SERVICES, INC.
TELECOMMUNICATIONS

2,5.2 §¢LHOL‘ incurring
interrupt the p
time in order
inspectionsg
regufatiaﬂc

equi
such

i
)

[AS]
w
W
o S

i S B SN ()]
ooty
+

@ et £ N
o

of the Ca
Customer

ISSUED: September 22, 2000
ISSUED BY: Nancy K. Lee, Executive Vigw ¥
67 Invernéss Drive E

Englewood, Colorade 84




 T-NETIX INTERNET SERVICES, INC.

2.6 Credit Allowance

2.6.1 Credit may be given for =43
per call basis,

ISSUED: sSeptember 22, 2000 ‘ EFFE
ISSUED BY: Nancy K. Lee, Executive Vice President

67 Inverness Drive Lxst

Englewcod, Colerads #oiip



T-NETIX INTERNET SERVICES, INC.

SOUTH DAKOTA PUC
TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIEF

2.7 Restoration of Service

The use and restoration of servi

accordance with the pricrity syst
&4, Subpart D of the Rules and Es

Federal Commurnications Commissionr:,

2.8 Deposit

The Company does not require deposits.

2.9 Advance Pavments

The Company does not require advanse YR

ISSUED:  September 22, 3000 T EFFECTY

ISSUED BY: Nancy K. Lee, Executive Vice Preasi
67 Inverness Drive East

Englewood, Colorado 80112




?-NETIX INTERNET SERVICES, INC.

SOUTH DAKQTA PUC
TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFE

Pavment and Billing

2.10.1 Service 1is provided and w*i&ea
cycle ba51s, beglnnlng onn th
service becomes effective.
payable upon receipt. A ILj
assessed on unpalid amounts
rendition of bills.

=2
-
[}
k]

The customer is responsible for
all charges for services furnig!
Customer, as well as to all pe
Customer's codes, exchange 1i
or equipment, with or without
or consent of the Customer.

the Customer's Authorization
subscribed exchange lines, : i
facilities is the responzibil

Customer. ALl calls placed usi
connect facilities, ”%sar bad e
lines, or Auth@rizaumu% 86 -y
to and must be paid by the Custs
based on actual usage duri ;
accrued interest will be QALlﬂd

arrears.

2.10.3 All bills are presumesd accyrate
binding on the customer unless
received by the Company in Wi
days after such billg are
credits, refunds, or adjustmer
granted if demand therefore isg
by the Ccmpany in writing within swedk
period.

ISSUED:

ISSUED BY:

September 22, 2000 EFFECTIVE :
Nancy K. Lee, Executive Vice President
67 Inverness Drive Bast
Englewood, Colorade 80112




T-NETIX INTERNET SERVICES, INC.

ORIGINAL
SOUTH DAKOTA PUC T2

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES

2.11 Collection”CQsts

for the enforcement of any other Provision of
tariff or applicable law,

to all amounts due,
reasonable costs
Payments,

due to the Company,

competent Jurisdiction or by the

TARIFE

obtained against a Cye

Customer shall, in

be liable tgo Company for all
incurred
broceedings and enforcement
’ reasonable attorneys’ fees,
and court costs.
amount of collection costs,

by Company in s
actions, incl
collection agarncy
In any such sroced
including atrer

’ ined by a ¢
Commission.

2.12 Taxes
A1l federal, state and local taxes, assesEmen
Surcharges, or fees, including sales Laxe
dIeSs receipts taxes, andg Bunicipal utilitieg
are billed as Seéparate line items and are reot
in the rares quoted herein,

2.13 Late Charge
A late fee of 1.5% per month or the amount othaer
authorized by law, whichever ig lowar, will e
On any past due balances.

2.14 Returned Check Charge
A fee of 520,00 Will be charged whenever a e
draft presented for payment for Service ig met
by the institution on which it ig written,

2.15 Reconnection Charge
A reconnection fee of $25.pg Per occurrence wiil
charged when Service is reestablished for cus
which have been disconnected dy Layn
Payment of the reconnectio BE
outstanding amounts will b
reconnection of service.

ISSUEDY  Septembar 22,2000 EFEEQTLVE:”"’%f
ISSUED Rv: Nancy K. Lee, Executive Vice President :

67 Inverness
Englewood, col

Drive East
rado 80112




T-NETIX INTERNET SERVICES, INC. ORIGINAL St
SOUTH DAKOTA PUC TAS
TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIEF

SECTION 3 - DESCRIPTION OF SERVIGE

3.1 Computation of Charges

2.1.1 The total charge for each comple
be a variable measured charge de
the duration, distance and *ime
call. The total charge for eac
call may also be dependent on
duration of the call, i.,e. a
rate per minute charge. The
measured charge is specified
minute which is applied to
calls are measured in inc
in the Rates Section of this
calls are rounded up to the
increment.

3.1.2 Where mileage bands appear in
rates for all calls are base
airline distance between i
terminating points of the cal)
by the vertical and horize
associated with Fay

associated with the orig
terminating telsphons nuy
Customer obtains access to
network by a dedicated o
circuit will be assigned
rating purposes based
main telephone number
the dedicated access o
vertical and horizenta
for each exchange and
between them will be detow
industry standards.

at

ISSUED: September 22, 2000 T EFFECTTVET
ISSUED BY: Nancy K. Lee, Executive Vice Presidant

67 Inverness brive Bast
Englewood, Colorade 80112



T-NETIX INTERNET SERVICES, INC. ORIGINAL

SOUTH DAKOTA PUC
TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIEE

3.1.3 Timing beging when the
answered and (

possible, a
methods gene
answer, in
in which

s R

Customer inguiries or complainés
accounting may be made in w
the Company at:

67 Inverness Drive Ea
Englewood, Colorade
(800} 531-424%

An objection to billed charesn:
promptly to the Company.
bills shall be mads to the
available and/or circumses
indicate that such char
approved rates or that an as
appropriate.

ISSUED: September 22, 2005 PEE
ISSUED RY: Wancy K. Lee, Executive Vige Pres
67 Inverness Drive Exsnt
Englewood, Colorads 8051

- 5 e aeii L



T-NETIX INTERNET SERVICES, INC.

The Company wiil respond wi
of receipt of an inquiry. I

or inquiry, the CU$t@mér‘m&y
Commission for resolution of
Dakota Public Utilities Commigeion .

500 East Capitol
Pierre, SD 57501-5470
[(605) 773-320%
(800} 332-1782
TTY thrﬁhﬁx Relay Serv
{800 877-1113

If z Customer accumulat
undisputed delinquent ¢
Company Resp. Crg. regerves
Customer's reguest for & B
undisputed charges are pa

3.3 Level of Service

A Customer can expect
of not less than @

When billing'fnnc?iﬁ”'
intermediary are parf
companies or Quﬁ@rsr

and regulations af sy
imposed upon thease
having jurisdiction
toll-free telsphons
Customer's bill,.

ISSUED: September 22, 2000
ISSUED BY: Nancy K, Les, Execubtive Vies
67 Inverness Drive fast

Englewood, Colorade BOLLY



T-NETIX INTERNET SERVICES, INC. OREGI;V

Service Offerings

IELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF 

SOUTH DAKOTA PUC °

1+ Dialing

- This service permits Customers to ori

calls via switched or dedicated act
and to terminate intrastate calls, 1
customer dials "1+" followed by "ten
or dials "101XX¥X" followed by "i+ &

digits".
3.5.2 Travel Cards

The Customer utilizes an 11 digit
access number established by i
access a terminal. Upon rec
prompt, the Customer uses o t4:
to enter an identification code
the Company, and the ten digit nw

called party.

{2
(€3
w

800 Service (Toll-Free!}

This service is inbound calling oni
800, 888 or other toll-freme prefix
rings into a Customer's premise ro
specific telephone number or te:
a dedicated facility.

1SSUED:  September 22, 2000 ' EFFECTIVE:
ISSUED RY: Nancy K. Lee, Executive Vice President
67 Inverness Drive East
Englewood, Coloradoc 80112




P-NETIX INTERNET SERVICES, INC.
| SOUTH DAR
TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES _

Reserved for Future vse

‘I"s‘swa‘-“.n“‘:"“‘September 22,2000
ISSUED Rmy.

Naney K. Lee, Executive Vice

67 InvernessADrive East
Englewood, Colorade ¢




T-NETIX INTERNET SERVICES, INC.

SOUTH DAKOTA PU
TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES T ARIFF

e

Reserved for Future Use

ISSUEL:” September 22, 2000 EFFECTIVE:
ISSUED BY: Nancy K, Lee, Executive Vice President
67 Inverness Drive East
Englewood, Colorado BO112




SOUTH DAKOTA PUC TAR
TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIEF

T~NETIX INTERNET SERVICES, INC. ORIGINAL SHE

3.5.5 Directory Assistance.

Access to long distance directory a
is obtained by dialing 1 + 855-1212 #
listings within the originating ares oo
1 + (area code) + 555-1212 for other
listings. When more than one number ig
requested in a single call, a charge
apply for each number regquested. A ¢
will be applicable for each number reg
whether or not the number is listed GE

published.
ISSUED: September 22, 2000 T EFFECTIVET T
ISSUED BY: Nancy K. Lee, Executive Vice Pregident

67 Inverness Drive East
Englewood, Colorade 86112




T-NETIX INTERNET SERVICES, INC.

SOUTH DAKOTA e a:
TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES fﬁREF?

3.5.6 Specialized Pricing Arrangems

G
2 2 A

to requests by Cu<tower

broposals or for COW?@
cffered under this L&y
filed with the Commiss

Or charges will be mad
simiiar?v situated Cus
discriminatory bas
noTif ﬁmm
regui Comm

3.5.7

3.5.8

The FG’Rpc&n‘J’ may,

promotional olfering
marketing of its sex
may be limited to s
locations. The G
Commission of such afts
Commission rules andg

ISSUED: September 22, 2000 , B By
ISSUED BY: Nancy K. Lee, Executive Vice Fresidant
67 Inverness Drive b: o

Englewood, Colorado 8@142




1+ Dialing

$0.22 per minute

A 54.95 per month service chargs appliss,
Billed in one minute increments,

Iravel Cards
$.35 per minute

A $.25 per call service charan snws
Billed in one minute inger

ISSUED BY: Nancy K. Lee, Executive Vies i

67 Inverness Drive &
Englewood, Colorades 1



T-NETI¥X INTERNET SERVICES, INC.

4.3 Toll Free

$0.22 per minute

A $10 per month per number se U;: ch
Billed in one minute increment

4.4 Reserved for Future Use

ISSBUED: September 22, 2000 E
ISSUED BRY: Nancy K. Lee, Execpntive Vice ?:&
67 Inverness Drive East
Englewood, Colorado 8OLL12




T-NETIX INTERNET SERVICES, INC.

IELECOMMUNICATIONS sp

4.5 Directory Assistance

$.95

4.6 Returned Check Charge

$20.00
ISSUED: September 22, 2000
ISSUED Rmy.

~EEH
Nancy K. Lee, Executive Vice pp

67 Inverness Brive ps,

Englewood, Coloradoe 8&112




T-NETIX INTERNET SERVICES, INC.

4.7 Rate Periods

e S OUS
e
Mand
8 a.m. Daytime Hate Pesisd
to
5 p.m.*
5 p.m. Evening B
to
11 p.om.>*
11 p.m. H
to
8 a.m.*
* To, but not

When a message spang
charges for the minut
calculated and ths
calculation results i
Will be rounded dows

4.8
A dial around surcharge of
any completed INTRAstabs
800/888 type calls placed
payphone.

4.9

The Customer wiil
Fund Contribution charge oy
which in no event shall ke
contribution percentage
intrastate traffie by &g
A Presubscribed Interexe
applies on a monthly basis
the prevailing rate.

ISSUED: September 22, 5000
I8SSUED BRY: Nancy K. Lee, Executive Vice
67 Invernsss Deive o

Englewood, €olorade



T-NETIX, INC.
67 INVERNESS DRIVE EAST
EHGLEWOOD, CO go112
{303y 790-9117

< TNETIX, INC.

. BTINVERNESS DHIVE EAST
CENGLEWOOD, GG 80112
(303) 790-9111

POE 3L G t:E}Li{L &SLL 35



South Dakota Public Utilities Commission
WEEKLY FILINGS
For the Period of September 21, 2000 through September 27, 2000

If you need a complete copy of a filing faxed, overnight expressed, of raatied 16 vou, plesss s
Delaine Kolbo within five business days of this filing.
Phone: 605-773-3705 Fax 605-773-3808

CONSUMER COMPLAINTS

CT00-104  Inthe Matter of the Complaint filed by Joan Clark, Yanktor, South Baket
AT&T Communications of the Midwest, inc. Regarding Ynauihoized Swite
Long Distance Carrier.

The complainant alleges that when she established new tetﬁphmn&ser;;és;ﬁhe«w% i
without her authorization. She had selected another long distance carigr. The 6o
compensation for the unauthorized switching and for her AT&T charges to be rarated 1o e

selected carrier would have charged.

staff Analyst: Charlene Lund
Staff Attorney: Karen E. Cremer
Date Docketed: 09/25/00
intervention Deadline: NA

ELECTRIC
EL00-027 In the Matter of the Petition filed by Northern States Power Company
Energy, Inc. for Approval of Modifications to the Swiall Genaral Thineobs

On September 21 2000, Northern States Power Company dibia Xoe! Energy
modifications to its small General Time of Day Service. The main purpase o
provide for an additional type of service under this rate for customers with UMArBUS, IS

staff Analyst: Heather Forney
Siaff Attorney:  Karen Cremer
Date Docketed: 09/21/00

TELECOMMUNICATIONS
TCO0-137 In the Matter of the Application of Americatel Corporation dibfn 10 23

1010 123 Americatel to Amend its Certificate of Authority o Offer Propan
Cards.

Americatel Corporation, d/b/a 10 123 Americatel and 1010 123 americatel (Amental
cerificate of authority 10 provide telecommunications services in South Dakota of i
to the condition that it not offer prepaid calling card service without prior app ‘
On September 21, 2000, Americatel submitted an application to revise its tanff
calling card service.



Staff Analyst: Heather Forney
Date Docketed: 09/21/00
intervention Deadline: 10/13/00

In the Matter of the Application of T-NETIX Internet Services, In&. for a4
Authority to Provide Telecommunications Services in South Dakat

T-NETIX Internet Services, Inc. is seeking a Certificate of Authority to provide intere
telecommunication services in South Dakota. The applicantis a reselier that irten
interexchange services including 1+ and 101XXXX outbound dialing, toli freg inbot?
assistance, data services and travel card services.

Staff Analyst: Keith Senger
Date Docketed: 09/22/00
intervention Deadline: 10/13/00

TC00-139 in the Matter of the Filing for Approval of a Boundary Chanige betwesn Maltgy
Telecommunications Cooperative Association, Inc. and West River
Telecommunications Cooperative.

Valley Telecommunications Cooperative Association, Inc. and West River Telgcains
Cooperative filed a joint application for approval of a boundary change betwesr
Clenham Exchanges. The proposed change moves the staggered and inconsis
section lines or county roads.

Siaff Analyst: Keith Senger
aiaft Attorney: Karen Cremer
Date Docketed: 09/25/00
intervantion Deadline. 10/1 3/00

TC00-140 in the Matter of the Application of Telicor, Inc. for a Certificate of Autbinrit
Telecommunications Services, Including Local Exchangg Services,

Talicor inc. has filed for a Certificate of Authority to provide resold and faciifties-based
intsrexchange service within the State of South Dakota. Telicor intends fo provide 1+ At
sutbound dialing, 800/888 toll-free inbound dialing, calling cards and data serviges
iocal exchange service, non-switched local service (e.g. private line), Centrex and/or
BSL, ISDN, and other high capacity line services.

Siaff Analyst. Michele Faris
Haie Docketed: 09/27/00
smtervention Deadiine: 10/13/00

You may receive this listing and other PUC publications via our website or yia inteen
You may subscribe or unsubscribe to the PUC mailing lists at hitp:hawwgiais

)




BEFORE THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
OF THE STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA

IN THE MATTER OF THE APPLICATION OF ]
T-NETIX INTERNET SERVICES, INC. FOR A )
CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY TO PROVIDE )
TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES N )
SOUTH DAKOTA )

On September 22, 2000, the Public Utiiities Com
accordance with SDCL 49-31-3 and ARSD 201024 02, o
certificate of authority from T-NETIX interret Services, e, (14

T-NETIX proposes to offer interexchange servicas, nchuding 1+ ¢
outbound dialing, 800/888 toli-free inbound dialing, diraco
travel card services. A proposed tariff was filed by T-NETIX
classified long distance service as fully competitive.

On September 28, 2000, the Commission sleoin
filing and the intervention deadline of October 13, &
entities. No petitions to intervene or comments we
meeting, the Commission considered T-NETIX's raques
Commission Staff recommended granting & cerificate o1 &
that T-NETIX not offer a prepaid calling card Or r6guira ¢
without prior approval of the Commission. Cammission Sial lusther MoommD
waiver of ARSD 20:10:24:02(8).

The Commission finds that it has jurisdictian &
Chapter 49-31, specifically 49-31-3 and ARSD 20
Commission finds that T-NETIX has met the legal reyg
granting of a certificate of authority. T-NETIX has, in socoraarica
demonstrated sufficient technical, financial and marageniel o
telecommunications services in South Dakota. Furiber, the € :
is good cause to waive ARSD 20:10:24:02(8). The Cormm
application for a certificate of authorily, subject to e conti
prepaid calling card or require deposits or advanie &
Commission. As the Commission's final decisios i ihvig rapitar, 8

ORDERED, that T-NETIX's application for & ©
granted, effective November 22, 2000, subject o the con
prepaid calling card or require deposits or advance paymantl W
Commission. Itis

FURTHER ORDERED, that the Commission finds gooc &mess 105
20:10:24:02(8). Itis




FURTHER ORDERED, that T-NETIX shall file informationat copies of tariff chiang ‘
with the Commission as the changes accur. :

Dated at Pierre, South Dakota, this 25/7%" day of October, Z000.

" CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 4816
The undersigned hereby certifies that this Ea

. document has been served teday upon all parties of

- regord-in this docket, as listed on the docket service i
i Nst, by first class mail, in properly addressed

envelope@«ith charges prepei;the;.

"Daie: /ﬂ//f;jg//ﬂ&

(OFFICIAL SEAL)




CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

To Conduct Business As A Telecommunications Company
Within The State Of South Dakota

Authority was Granted October 17, 2000, effective November 22 2000
Docket No. TC0OO-138

This is to certify that
T-NETIX INTERNET SERVICES, INC.
Is authorized to provide telecommunications servicas i South Dakola.

This certificate is issued in accordance with SDEL 4%3%:»

-

20:130:24:02, and is subject to all of the cordition vy arnd

the rules and statutes governing its conduct of ooff am:;
services.

Dated at Pierre, South Dakota, this | w{:“

SOUTH DAKOTA PUBLIC
UTILITIES COMMISSION:




